
S
T

A
T

E
 O

F
 IL

L
IN

O
IS

 
K

A
N

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 O

F
F

IC
E

 O
F

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

. 31 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 A

U
D

IT
 

(In A
ccordance w

ith th
e S

ingle A
u

d
it A

ct an
d

 O
M

B
 C

ircu
lar A

-133) 
F

O
R

 T
H

E
 Y

E
A

R
 E

N
D

E
D

 JU
N

E
 30, 2009 

P
erform

ed as S
pecial A

ssistant A
uditors 

F
or the A

uditor G
eneral, S

tate o
f Illinois 

E
.c. O

R
T

IZ
 &

 C
O

, LLP
 



K
A

N
E

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 O

F
F

IC
E

 O
F

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

. 31 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

P
A

G
E

 

O
F

F
IC

IA
L

S
 ................................................................................................................................. I 

C
O

M
P

L
IA

N
C

E
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 S

U
M

M
A

R
y
 ...................................................................................... 2 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

y
 ................................................................... 4 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 

Independent A
uditors' R

eport ......................................................................................................... 5 

R
eport on Internal C

ontrol O
ver F

inancial R
eporting and 

on C
om

pliance and O
ther M

atters B
ased on 

an A
udit o

f F
inancial S

tatem
ents P

erform
ed in 

A
ccordance w

ith G
overnm

ent A
uditing Standards ...................................................................... 7 

R
eport on C

om
pliance w

ith R
equirem

ents 
A

pplicable to E
ach M

ajor P
rogram

 and on Internal C
ontrol 

O
ver C

om
pliance in A

ccordance w
ith O

M
B

 C
ircular A

-133 ...................................................... 9 

S
chedule o

f F
indings and Q

uestioned C
osts ...................................................................................... 11 

F
inancial S

tatem
ent F

indings .......................................................................................................... 12 

F
ederal A

w
ard F

indings ................................................................................................................... 12 

S
um

m
ary S

chedule o
f P

rior A
udit F

indings ...................................................................................... 13 

M
anagem

ent's D
iscussion and A

nalysis ........................................................................................... 14 

E
X

H
IB

IT
 

B
A

S
IC

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

S
 

G
overnm

ent-w
ide F

inancial S
tatem

ents 
S

tatem
ent o

f N
et A

ssets ................................................................................... A
 ...................... 21 

S
tatem

ent o
f A

ctivities .................................................................................... B
 ...................... 22 



K
A

N
E

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 O

F
F

IC
E

 O
F

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

. 31 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 (C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

P
A

G
E

 
E

X
H

IB
IT

 
B

A
SIC

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

S
 (C

ontinued) 

F
und F

inancial S
tatem

ents 
G

overnm
ental F

unds -
B

alance S
heet ............................................................... C

 ...................... 23 
G

overnm
ental F

unds -
R

econciliation o
f the G

overnm
ental F

unds 
B

alance S
heet to the S

tatem
ent o

f N
et A

ssets ............................................. D
 ...................... 24 

G
overnm

ental F
unds -

S
tatem

ent o
f R

evenues, E
xpenditures, and 

C
hanges in F

und B
alances ......................................................................... E

 ....................... 25 
G

overnm
ental F

unds -
R

econciliation o
f the S

tatem
ent o

f R
evenues, 

E
xpenditures, and C

hanges in F
und B

alances to the S
tatem

ent o
f 

A
ctivities .................................................................................................. F

 ....................... 2
6

 
P

roprietary F
unds -

S
tatem

ent o
f N

et A
ssets ..................................................... G

 ...................... 27 
P

roprietary F
unds -

S
tatem

ent o
f R

evenues, E
xpenses, and 

C
hanges in F

und N
et A

ssets ....................................................................... H
 ...................... 28 

P
roprietary F

unds -
S

tatem
ent o

f C
ash F

low
s .................................................... I... ..................... 29 

F
iduciary F

unds -
S

tatem
ent o

f F
iduciary N

et A
ssets ........................................ .1.. ...................... 3

0
 

N
otes to F

inancial S
tatem

ents 
31 

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 S

U
P

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

 IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 

Illinois M
unicipal R

etirem
ent F

und -
S

chedule o
f F

unding P
rogress ........................................... 51 

S
U

P
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 
S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
 

G
eneral F

und: 
C

om
bining S

chedule o
f A

ccounts ..................................................................... 1 ....................... 5
2

 
C

om
bining S

chedule o
f R

evenues, E
xpenditures, and 

C
hanges in F

und B
alances ......................................................................... 2 ....................... 5

3
 

B
udgetary C

om
parison S

chedule ...................................................................... 3 ....................... 5
4

 

E
ducation F

und: 
C

om
bining S

chedule o
f A

ccounts .................................................................... 4 ....................... 5
5

 
C

om
bining S

chedule o
f R

evenues, E
xpenditures, and 

C
hanges in F

und B
alances ......................................................................... 5 ....................... 5

7
 

B
udgetary C

om
parison S

chedule ..................................................................... 6 ....................... 5
9

 

N
onm

ajor S
pecial R

evenue F
unds: 

C
om

bining B
alance S

heet .............................................................................. .7. ...................... 61 
C

om
bining S

tatem
ent o

f R
evenues, E

xpenditures, and 
C

hanges in F
und B

alances ......................................................................... 8 ....................... 6
2

 



K
A

N
E

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 O

F
F

IC
E

 O
F

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

. 31 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 (C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

P
A

G
E

 
S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
 

S
U

P
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 (C
ontinued) 

N
onm

ajor P
roprietary F

unds: 
C

om
bining S

tatem
ent o

f N
et A

ssets _________________________________________________________________ 9 _______________________ 6
3

 
C

om
bining S

tatem
ent o

f R
evenues, E

xpenses, and 
C

hanges in F
und N

et A
ssets ______________________________________________________________________ 1 0 _____________________ 6

5
 

C
om

bining S
tatem

ent o
f C

ash F
low

s ________________________________________________________________ 11 _____________________ 6
7

 

F
iduciary F

unds: 
C

om
bining S

tatem
ent o

f F
iduciary N

et A
ssets __________________________________________________ 12 _____________________ 6

9
 

C
om

bining S
tatem

ent o
f C

hanges in A
ssets and L

iabilities _______________________________ J 3 ____________________ 3
0

 

S
chedule o

f D
isbursem

ents to S
chool D

istrict T
reasurers 

and O
thers ______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 14 _____________________ 71 

F
E

D
E

R
A

L
 C

O
M

P
L

IA
N

C
E

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 

S
chedule o

f E
xpenditures o

f F
ederal A

w
ards __________________________________________________________ .15 _____________________ 7

2
 

N
otes to S

chedule o
f E

xpenditures o
f F

ederal A
w

ards ______________________________________________________________________ 7
3

 



K
A

N
E

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 O

F
F

IC
E

 O
F

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

. 31 
O

F
F

IC
IA

L
S

 

R
egional S

uperintendent 
(cU

lT
ent and during the audit period) 

A
ssistant R

egional S
uperintendent 

(cU
lT

ent and during the audit period) 

O
ffice is located at: 

210 S. S
ixth S
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G

eneva, Illinois, 60134 

M
r. D

ouglas Johnson 

M
r. H
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T
he com

pliance audit testing perfonned in this audit w
as conducted in accordance w

ith G
overnm

ent 
A

uditing Standards and in accordance w
ith the Illinois State A

uditing A
ct. 

A
U

D
IT

O
R

S
' R

E
P

O
R

T
S

 

T
he auditors' reports on com

pliance and on internal controls do not contain scope lim
itations, 

disclaim
ers, or other significant non-standard language. 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 A

U
D

IT
 F

IN
D

IN
G

S
 

N
um

ber o
f 

A
udit findings 

R
epeated audit findings 

P
rior recom

m
endations im

plem
ented or not repeated 

T
his A

udit 
P

rior A
udit 

2 

2 
I 

A
n additional m

atter w
hich is less than a significant deficiency or m

aterial w
eakness but m

ore than 
inconsequential, 

has 
been 

reported 
in 

a 
M

anagem
ent 

L
etter 

o
f C

om
m

ents 
to 

the 
R

egional 
Superintendent. 

In prior years, this issue m
ay have been included as an im

m
aterial finding in the 

auditors' reports. 
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N
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G
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 C
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 C
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f C
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P
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O
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R
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P
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T
he K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31 opted not to have an exit conference during 
the financial audit for the year ended June 30, 2009. 
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T
he audit o

f the accom
panying basic financial statem

ents o
f the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f 
E

ducation N
o. 31 w

as perform
ed by E

. C
. O

rtiz &
 C

o., L
L

P. 

B
ased on their audit, the auditors expressed an unqualified opinion on the K

ane C
ounty R

egional 
O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 31's basic financial statem

ents. 
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H
onorable W

illiam
 G

. H
olland 

A
nditor G

eneral 
S

tate o
f Illinois 

A
s Special A

ssistant A
nditors for the A

uditor G
eneral, w

e have audited the accom
panying financial 

statem
ents o

f the governm
ental activities, the business-type activities, each m

ajor fund, and the 
aggregate rem

aining fund inform
ation o

f K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 31, as o

f 
and for the year ended June 30, 2009, w

hich collectively com
prise the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice 

o
f E

ducation N
o. 31's basic fm

ancial statem
ents as listed in the table o

f contents. T
hese financial 

statem
ents 

are 
the 

responsibility 
o

f the 
K

ane 
C

ounty R
egional 

O
ffice 

o
f E

ducation N
o. 

31's 
m

anagem
ent. 

O
ur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statem

ents based on our 
audit. 

W
e conducted our audit in accordance w

ith auditing standards generally accepted in the U
nited 

S
tates o

f A
m

erica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in G
overnm

ent A
uditing 

Standards issued by the C
om

ptroller G
eneral o

f the U
nited States. 

T
hose standards require that w

e 
plan and perform

 the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about w
hether the financial statem

ents are 
free o

f m
aterial m

isstatem
ent. 

A
n

 audit includes exam
ining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 

anl0unts 
and 

disclosures 
in 

the 
financial 

statem
ents. 

A
n 

audit 
also 

includes 
assessing 

the 
accounting principles used and the significant estim

ates m
ade by m

anagem
ent, as w

ell as evaluating 
the overall financial statem

ent presentation. 
W

e believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statem
ents referred to above present fairly, in all m

aterial respects, the 
respective financial position o

f the governm
ental activities, the business-type activities, each m

ajor 
nm

d and the aggregate rem
aining fund inform

ation o
f the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation 

N
o. 31, as o

f June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flow
s, w

here 
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in 

conform
ity w

ith accounting principles generally 
accepted in the U

nited States o
f A

m
erica, 

In accordance 
w

ith 
G

overnm
ent 

A
uditing 

Standards, 
w

e 
have 

also 
issued 

a 
report 

dated 
F

ebrnary 17, 2010 on our consideration o
f the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31's 
internal control over financial repoliing and on our tests o

f its com
pliance w

ith certain provisions o
f 

law
s, regulations, contracts, and grant agreem

ents and other m
atters. 

T
he purpose o

f that repO
li is 

to describe the scope o
f our testing o

f internal control over financial reporting and com
pliance and 

the results o
f that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial 

reporting or on com
pliance. 

T
hat report is an integral part o

f an audit perform
ed in accordance w

ith 
G

overnm
ent A

uditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results o
f our audit. 
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T
he M

anagem
ent's D

iscussion and A
nalysis and Illinois M

unicipal R
etirem

ent F
und S

chedule o
f 

F
unding P

rogress on pages 14 through 20 and page 51 are not a required part o
f the basic financial 

statem
ents but are supplem

entary inform
ation required by accounting principles generally accepted 

in the U
nited S

tates o
f A

m
erica. 

W
e have applied certain lim

ited procedures, w
hich consisted 

principally o
f inquiries o

f m
anagem

ent regarding the m
ethods o

f m
easurem

ent and presentation o
f 

the required supplem
entary inform

ation. 
H

ow
ever, w

e did not audit the inform
ation and express no 

opinion on it. 

O
ur audit w

as conducted for the purpose o
f form

ing opinions on the financial statem
ents that 

collectively com
prise the 

K
ane 

C
ounty 

R
egional 

O
ffice 

o
f E

ducation N
o. 

31 's basic 
financial 

statem
ents. 

T
he 

com
bining 

and 
individual 

nonm
ajor 

fund 
financial 

statem
ents, 

budgetary 
com

parison schedules, and S
chedule o

f D
isbursem

ents to S
chool D

istrict T
reasurers and O

thers are 
presented for purposes o

f additional 
analysis and are not a required part o

f the basic financial 
statem

ents. 
T

he 
accom

panying S
chedule o

f E
xpenditures o

f F
ederal A

w
ards is 

presented for 
purposes o

f additional analysis as required by the U
. S. O

ffice o
f M

anagem
ent and B

udget C
ircular 

A
-I33, A

udits o
f States, 

L
ocal G

overnm
ents, 

and N
on-P

rofit O
rganizations, 

and 
is 

also not a 
required part o

f the basic financial 
statem

ents. 
T

he com
bining and individual nom

n'\ior fund 
financial 

statem
ents, 

budgetary 
com

parison 
schedules, 

S
chedule 

o
f D

isbursem
ents 

to 
S

chool' 
D

istrict T
reasurers and O

thers, and the S
chedule o

f E
xpenditures o

f F
ederal A

w
ards have been 

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit o
f the basic financial statem

ents and, in our 
opinion, are fairly stated in all m

aterial respects in relation to the basic financial statem
ents tal,en as 

a w
hole. 

C
hicago, Illinois 

F
ebruary 17, 2010 

6 



F
.e

. O
R

T
IZ

 &
 

C
o

., L
IP

 
C

E
R

T
IF

IE
D

 
P

U
B

L
IC

 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

A
I'H

S
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 O
N

 IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

 O
V

E
R

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
 A

N
D

 O
N

 
C

O
M

P
L

IA
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 O

T
H

E
R

 M
A

T
T

E
R

S
 B

A
S

E
D

 O
N

 A
N

 A
U

D
IT

 O
F

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
E

D
 IN

 A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E

 W
IT

H
 

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 A
U

D
IT

IN
G

 S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
 

H
onorable W

illiam
 G

. H
olland 

A
uditor G

eneral 
S

tate o
f Illinois 

A
s S

pecial A
ssistant A

uditors for the A
uditor G

eneral, w
e have audited the financial statem

ents o
f 

the 
governm

ental 
activities, 

the 
business-type 

activities, 
each 

m
ajor fund, 

and 
the 

aggregate 
rem

aining fund inforn1ation o
f the K

ane C
O

lm
ty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31, as o
f and for 

the year ended June 30, 2009, w
hich collectively com

prise the K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f 

E
ducation N

o. 3
1

's basic financial statem
ents and have issued our report thereon dated F

ebruary 17, 
2010. 

W
e conducted our audit in accordance w

ith auditing standards generally accepted in the 
U

nited S
tates o

f A
m

erica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in G
overnm

ent 
A

uditing Standards, issued by the C
om

ptroller G
eneral o

f the U
nited S

tates. 

In
tern

al C
ontrol O

v
er F

inancial R
eporting 

In planning and perfofl11ing our audit, w
e considered the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation 

N
o. 3

1
's internal control over fm

ancial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures 
for the purpose o

f expressing our opinions on the financial statem
ents, but not for the purpose o

f 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness o

f the K
ane CO

ll11ty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 

31 's internal control over financial reporting. 
A

ccordingly, w
e do not express an opinion on the 

effectiveness o
f the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31 's intem
al control over 

financial reporting. 

A
 deficiency in 

internal control exists w
hen the design or operation o

f a control does not allow
 

m
anagem

ent or em
ployees, in the nO

fl11al course o
f perforn1ing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 

detect and correct m
isstatem

ents on a tim
ely basis. 

A
 m

aterial w
eakness is a deficiency, or com

bination o
f deficiencies, in internal control, such that there 

is a reasonable possibility that a m
aterial m

isstatem
ent o

f the entity's fm
ancial statem

ents w
ill not be 

prevented, or detected and corrected on a tin1ely basis. 

O
ur consideration o

f intem
al control over financial reporting w

as for the lim
ited purpose described in 

the first paragraph o
f tillS section and w

as not designed to identify all deficiencies in intem
al control 

over financial reporting tlm
t m

ight be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or m
aterial w

ealm
esses. 

W
e 

did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that w
e consider to be 

m
aterial w

ealm
esses, as defined above. 
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C
om

p
lian

ce and O
ther M

atters 

A
s P

aIt o
f obtaining reasonable 

assuraI1C
e 

about w
hether the K

aIle 
CO

U
1lty R

egional 
O

ffice o
f 

E
ducation N

o. 31 's finaIlcial statem
ents are free o

f m
aterial m

isstatem
ent, w

e perfoll1led tests o
f its 

com
pliance 

w
ith 

certain 
provisions 

o
f 

law
s, 

regulations, 
contracts, 

aIld 
grant 

agreem
ents, 

noncom
pliance w

ith w
hich could have a direct and m

aterial effect on the detell1lination o
f financial 

statem
ent am

ounts. 
H

ow
ever, providing an opiuion on com

pliaI1C
e w

ith those provisions w
as not 

an objective o
f our audit, and accordiugly, w

e do not express such an opiuion. 
T

Ile results o
f our 

tests disclosed no instances o
f noncom

pliaIlce or other m
atters that are required to be reported lm

der 
G

overnm
ent A

uditing Standards. 

W
e also noted a certain m

atter w
hich w

e have reported to m
anagem

ent o
f the K

ane C
ounty R

egional 
O

fiice o
f E

ducation N
o. 31 in a separate letter dated F

ebruary 17,2010. 

T
his report is intended solely for the infoT

Inatiou and use o
f the A

uditor G
eneral, the G

eneral 
A

ssem
bly, the L

egislative A
udit C

onm
lission, the G

ovell10r, agency m
aI1agem

ent, others w
ithin the 

entity, the Illinois S
tate B

oard o
f E

ducation, federal aw
arding agencies and pass-through entities 

aIld is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other thaIl these specified paIties. 
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A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E

 W
IT

H
 O

M
B

 C
IR

C
U

L
A

R
 A

-133 

H
onorable W

illiam
 G

. H
olland 

A
uditor G

eneral 
S

tate o
f Illinois 

C
om

pliance 

W
e have andited the com

pliance o
f the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31 w
ith the 

types o
f com

pliance requirem
ents described in the us. 

O
ffice o

f M
anagem

ent and B
udget (O

M
B

) 
C

ircular A
-133 C

om
pliance Supplem

ent tilat are applicable to each o
f its m

ajor federal program
s for 

the year ended June 30, 2009. 
T

he K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 3

1
's m

ajor 
federal 

program
s 

are 
identified 

in 
the 

SlU
lllnary 

o
f the 

A
uditors' 

R
esults 

section 
o

f the 
accom

panying S
chedule o

f F
indings and Q

uestioned C
osts. 

C
om

pliance w
ith tile requirem

ents o
f 

law
s, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each o

f its m
ajor federal program

s is the 
responsibility o

f the K
ane 

C
ounty R

egional 
O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 

3
1

's m
anagem

ent. 
O

ur 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 3
1

's 
com

pliance based on our audit. 

W
e conducted our audit o

f com
pliance in accordance w

ith auditing standards generally accepted in 
the U

nited S
tates o

f A
m

erica; tile standards applicable to financial audits contained in G
overnm

ent 
A

uditing Standards, issued by the C
om

ptroller G
eneral o

f the U
nited S

tates; and O
M

B
 C

ircular A
-

133, A
udits o

f States, 
L

ocal G
overnm

ents, 
and N

on-P
ro.fit O

rganizations. 
T

hose standards and 
O

M
B

 C
ircular A

-l33 require that w
e plan and perform

 ilie audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about w

hetiler noncom
pliance w

ith the types o
f com

pliance requirem
ents referred to above that 

could have a direct and m
aterial effect on a m

ajor federal program
 occurred. 

A
n audit includes 

exanlining, on a test basis, evidence about the K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 3

1
's 

com
pliance 

w
ith tilose 

requirem
ents 

and perform
ing 

such other procedures 
as 

w
e 

considered 
necessary in the circum

stances. 
W

e believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

O
ur audit does not provide a legal determ

ination o
f the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f 
E

ducation N
o. 3

1
's com

pliance w
ith those requirem

ents. 

In our opinion, the K
ane C

O
lU

lty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 31 

com
plied, in all m

aterial 
respects, W

itil the requirem
ents referred to above that are applicable to each o

f its m
ajor federal 

program
s for ilie year ended June 30, 2009. 
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Internal C
ontrol O

ver C
om

pliance 

T
he m

anagem
ent o

f the K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 

31 
is responsible for 

establishing and m
aintaining effective internal control over com

pliance w
ith the requirem

ents o
f 

law
s, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal progranls. 

In planning and perform
ing 

our audit, w
e considered the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31's internal control 
over com

pliance w
ith requirem

ents that could have a direct and m
aterial effect on a m

ajor federal 
program

 in order to determ
ine our auditing procedures for the purpose o

f expressing our opinion on 
com

pliance, but not for the purpose o
f expressing an opinion on the effectiveness o

f internal control 
over com

pliance. 
A

ccordingly, w
e do not express an opinion on the effectiveness o

f the K
ane 

C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 3
1

's internal control over com
pliance. 

A
 control d4iciency in an entity's internal control over com

pliance exists w
hen the design or 

operation 
o

f a 
control 

does 
not 

allow
 

m
anagem

ent 
or 

em
ployees, 

in 
the 

nornlal 
course 

o
f 

perform
ing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncom

pliance w
ith a type o

f com
pliance 

requirem
ent o

f a federal progranl on a tim
ely basis. 

A
 significant deficiency is a control deficiency 

or com
bination o

f control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's ability to adm
inister a 

federal program
 such that there is m

ore than a rem
ote likelihood that noncom

pliance w
ith a type o

f 
com

pliance 
requirem

ent 
o

f a 
federal 

program
 that is 

m
ore 

than 
inconsequential 

w
ill 

not 
be 

prevented or detected by the entity's internal control. 

A
 m

aterial w
eakness is a significant deficiency, or com

bination o
f significant deficiencies, that 

results in m
ore than a rem

ote likelihood that m
aterial noncom

pliance w
ith a type o

f com
pliance 

requirem
ent o

f a federal program
 w

ill not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control. 

O
ur consideration o

f the internal control over com
pliance w

as for the lim
ited purpose described in 

the first paragraph o
f this section and w

ould not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that m

ight be significant deficiencies or m
aterial w

ealm
esses. 

W
e did not identify any 

deficiencies in internal control over com
pliance that w

e consider to be m
aterial w

ealm
esses, as 

defined above. 

T
his report is intended solely for the inform

ation and use o
f the A

uditor G
eneral, the G

eneral 
A

ssem
bly, the L

egislative A
udit C

om
m

ission, the G
overnor, agency m

anagem
ent, others w

ithin the 
entity, Illinois State B

oard o
f E

ducation, federal aw
arding agencies and pass-through entities and is 

not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

L
 

C. 

C
hicago, Illinois 

F
ebruary 17,2010 

l 
C

o. 
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. 31 
S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
 O

F
 F

IN
D

IN
G

S
 A

N
D

 Q
U

E
S

T
IO

N
E

D
 C

O
S

T
S

 
F

O
R

 T
H

E
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E
A

R
 E

N
D

E
D

 JU
N

E
 30, 2009 

P
art I: S

u
m

m
ary

 o
f the A

uditors' R
esults 

F
inancial S

tatem
ents 

T
ype o

f auditors' report issued: 
U

nqualified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• 
M

aterial w
eakness(es) identified? 

Y
es 

,/
 

N
o 

• 
S

ignificant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
considered to be m

aterial w
eakness(es)? 

Y
es 

,/
 

N
one reported 

• 
N

oncom
pliance m

aterial to financial statem
ents 

noted? 
Y

es 
,/

 
N

o 

F
ederal A

w
ards 

Internal control over m
ajor program

s: 

• 
M

aterial w
eakness(es) identified? 

Y
es 

,/
 

N
o 

• 
S

ignificant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
considered to be m

aterial w
eakness(es)? 

Y
es 

,/
 

N
one reported 

T
ype o

f auditors' report issued on com
pliance for 

m
ajor program

s: 
U

nqualified 

A
ny audit findings disclosed that are required to be 

reported in accordance w
ith C

ircular A
-l3

3
, 

S
ection .51O

(a)? 
Y

es 
,/

 
N

o 

Identification o
f m

ajor program
s: 

C
F

D
A

N
u

m
b

er 
N

am
e o

f F
ederal P

rogram
 or C

luster 

84.010A
 

84.394A
 

T
itle I -

S
chool Im

provem
ent &

 A
ccountability 

A
R

R
A

 -
G

eneral S
tate A

id 

D
ollar tlrreshold used to distinguish betw

een type A
 

and type B
 P

rogram
s: 

A
uditee qualified as low

-risk auditee? 

II 

$300,000 

,/ 
Y

es 
N

o 
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. 31 
S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
 O

F
 F

IN
D

IN
G

S
 A

N
D

 Q
U

E
S

T
IO

N
E

D
 C

O
S

T
S

 
F

O
R

 T
H

E
 Y

E
A

R
 E

N
D

E
D

 JU
N

E
 30, 2009 

P
a
rt II: F

in
d

in
g

 R
elated to th

e F
in

an
cial S

tatem
ents 

T
here are no audit findings in the current year. 

P
art ill: F

indings an
d

 Q
uestioned C

osts fo
r F

ed
eral A

w
ard

s 

In
stan

ces o
f N

oncom
pliance: 

N
one 

S
ignificant D

eficiency: 

N
one 

12 
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. 31 
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 O
F

 P
R

IO
R

 A
U

D
IT

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S

 
JU

N
E

 30, 2009 

F
in

d
in

g
 N

o. 
C

ondition 
C

u
rren

t S
tatus 

08-1 
08-2 

Inadequate M
onitoring o

f C
ollateral o

n
 D

eposits 
F

ailure to A
pply A

ppropriate A
ccounting P

rinciples 

13 

N
o
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epeated 

N
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K
A

N
E

 C
O

U
N

T
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 R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 O

F
F

IC
E

 O
F

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

. 31 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
'S

 D
IS

C
U

S
S

IO
N

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

 
JU

N
E

 30, 2009 

T
ins discussion and analysis o

f the K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation's financial 
report provides an overview

 o
f the financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2009 w

ith 
com

parative inform
ation for the year ended June 30, 2008. 

T
he intent o

f this discussion and 
analysis is to look at the R

O
E

's perform
ance as a w

hole. 
R

eaders should review
 the financial 

statem
ents and any notes to the basic financial statem

ents to assist them
 in understanding the 

role o
f the R

O
E

, its operations and financial condition. 

T
he 

purpose 
o

f the 
K

ane 
C

ounty 
R

egional 
O

ffice 
o

f E
ducation is 

to 
prom

ote 
quality 

education for the citizens o
f the K

ane C
ounty E

ducational S
ervice R

egion by acting as an 
advocate for education, providing leadership, perform

ing regulatory functions as directed by 
the Illinois State B

oard o
f E

ducation and the Illinois S
chool C

ode, providing access to 
needed 

resources 
and 

dissenlinating 
inform

ation 
to 

school 
districts, 

educators 
and 

the 
corm

nunity. 

M
ission 

T
he m

ission o
f the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation is to provide leadership in the 

learning 
com

m
unity 

by 
developing 

educational 
resources, 

facilitating 
learning 

and 
collaborating w

ith all educational partners. 

E
d

u
catio

n
 S

ervice R
egion 

T
he K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation serves over 130,000 students, w

hich includes 
119,928 public school students and 10,129 private/parochial students. 

O
ur region includes 

nine (K
-12) unit districts, tw

o com
m

unity college districts, 176 public school buildings and 
over 9,000 public/private school teachers. 

O
verview

lIssues 

A
gain, there w

ere som
e program

s that w
ere required under the Illinois S

chool C
ode that did 

not receive continued funding or w
ere reduced for this fiscal year. 

A
lthough legislation w

as 
enacted to m

alce som
e o

f these program
s optional, the expectation from

 our constituents is 
that w

e continue and even expand the program
s. 

T
he need does not go aw

ay for program
s 

such as the Illinois A
dm

inistrator's A
cadem

y and G
ifted E

ducation. 
A

 m
aj or funding source 

for P
rofessional D

evelopm
ent com

es from
 the R

O
E

IlS
C

 budget w
hich flow

s through the 
Illinois State B

oard o
f E

ducation budget. 
O

ur R
O

E
 school services budget continued to be 

reduced since the last fiscal year w
ith the expectation that w

e m
aintain or expand services to 

our school districts. 
T

he need to build and m
aintain an enterprise fund so that R

O
E

s can 
provide needed services to our schools and personnel in the future, w

ithout relying on total 
S

tate support is critical. 
In addition, as funding at the C

ounty level gets m
ore com

petitive 
and there are less funds to distribute locally, C

ounty B
oards are looking to the R

O
E

 to set 
aside funds to contribute to such item

s as rent, utilities, building m
aintenance and other 

14 
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item
s, w

hich previously had been provided by the C
ounty. 

W
e w

ill again be allocating funds 
next fiscal year to these item

s and to an upcom
ing m

ove o
f our O

ffice to a new
 facility w

here 
w

e haven't been asked to contribute in past years. 
W

e continue to show
 student grow

th in 
our area and to have several new

 schools built every year in our region. 
O

ur overall budget 
for next year w

ill reflect som
e deduction in new

 line item
s and m

aintenance o
f present 

program
s at this year's level. 

W
e w

ill continue to aggressively pursue new
 grants and 

opportunities to be able to expand the services provided by our O
ffice and to provide funding 

and resources for our local school districts. 

2009 F
inancial H

ighlights 

• 
W

ithin the G
overnm

ental Funds, the G
eneral Fund revenues decreased by $82,708 (14%

) 
from

 
$611,432 

in 
F

Y
 2008 

to 
$528,724 in F

Y
 2009. 

G
eneral 

Fund 
expenditures 

decreased by $59,449 (10%
) from

 $587,504 in F
Y

 2008 to $528,055 in F
Y

 2009. 

• 
W

ithin the 
G

overnm
ental Funds, 

the 
Special 

R
evenue 

Fund 
revenues 

decreased by 
$158,642 (4%

) from
 $3,679,632 in F

Y
 2008 to $3,520,990 in F

Y
 2009. 

T
he Special 

R
evenue F

und expenditures increased by $202,802 (7%
) from

 $3,060,455 in FY
 2008 to 

$3,263,257 in F
Y

 2009. 

• 
T

he E
nterprise F

und revenue decreased by $284,152 (39%
) from

 $723,731 in F
Y

 2008 to 
$439,579 in F

Y
 2009. 

T
he E

nterprise F
und expenditures decreased by $373,251 (53%

) 
from

 $706,054 in F
Y

 2008 to $332,803 in F
Y

 2009. 

U
sing T

his R
ep

o
rt 

T
his report consists o

f a series o
f financial statem

ents and other inform
ation, as follow

s: 

• 
M

anagem
ent's D

iscussion and A
nalysis introduces financial statem

ents and provides an 
analytical overview

 o
f the R

egional O
ffice's financial activities. 

• 
T

he G
overnm

ent-w
ide financial statem

ents consist o
f a Statem

ent o
f N

et A
ssets and a 

S
tatem

ent o
f A

ctivities. 
T

hese provide inform
ation about the activities o

f the R
egional 

O
ffice o

f E
ducation as a w

hole and present an overall view
 o

fth
e O

ffice's finances. 
• 

F
und financial statem

ents report the R
egional O

ffice's operations in m
ore detail than the 

governm
ent-w

ide statem
ents by providing inform

ation about the m
ost significant funds. 

• 
N

otes to the financial statem
ents provide additional inform

ation that is needed for a full 
understanding o

f the data provided in the basic financial statem
ents. 

• 
R

equired 
supplem

entary 
inform

ation 
further 

explains 
the 

financial 
statem

ents 
and 

supplem
entary inform

ation provides detailed inform
ation about the non-m

ajor funds. 
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T
h

e S
tatem

en
t o

f N
et A

ssets an
d

 the S
tatem

ent o
f A

ctivities 

G
ovem

m
ent-w

ide F
inancial S

tatem
ents 

T
he G

ovem
m

ent-w
ide financial statem

ents report infonnation about the R
O

E
 N

o. 31 
as a 

w
hole. 

T
he S

tatem
ent o

f N
et A

ssets includes all o
f the assets and liabilities. 

A
ll o

f the 
CU

lTent 
year 

revenues 
and 

expenses 
are 

accounted 
for 

in 
the 

S
tatem

ent 
o

f A
ctivities 

regardless o
f w

hen cash is received or paid using generally accepted accounting plinciples 
andG

A
S

B
 34. 

T
he G

overnm
ent-w

ide financial statem
ents report the O

ffice's net assets and how
 they have 

changed. 
N

et assets -
the difference betw

een assets and liabilities -
are one w

ay to m
easure 

the O
ffice's financial health or position. 

• 
O

ver tim
e, 

increases 
or decreases 

in 
the net 

assets 
can be 

an 
indicator o

f w
hether 

financial position is im
proving or deteliorating, respectively. 

• 
T

o assess the R
egional O

ffice's overall condition, additional non-financial factors, such 
as new

 law
s, rules, regulations, and actions by officials at the State level need to be 

considered. 

F
und F

inancial S
tatem

ents 

T
he fund financial statem

ents provide detailed infonnation about the R
O

E
 N

o. 3
1

's funds. 
F

unds are accounting devices that allow
 the tracking o

f specific sources o
f funding and 

spending on particular program
s. 

S
om

e funds are required by State law
. 

T
he R

O
E

 N
o. 31 

established other funds to control and m
anage m

oney for particular purposes. 

T
he O

ffice has three kinds o
f funds: 

• 
G

overnm
ental F

unds account for those funds through w
hich m

ost governm
ental functions 

o
f the O

ffice are financed. 
T

hese focus on how
 cash and other financial assets that can 

be readily converted to cash flow
 in and out and the balances left at the year-end that are 

available 
for 

spending. 
C

onsequently, 
the 

governm
ental 

fund 
statem

ents provide 
a 

detailed short-tenn view
 that helps detem

line w
hether there are m

ore or few
er resources 

that can be spent in the near future to finance the O
ffice's program

s. 
T

he governm
ental 

funds required financial statem
ents include a B

alance S
heet and a S

tatem
ent o

f R
evenues, 

E
xpenditures and C

hanges in F
und B

alances. 

• 
P

roprietary F
unds account for resources from

 fees charged directly to those entities or 
individuals that use its services. 

P
roprietary fund statem

ents provide both long-tenn and 
short-tenn financial infonnation consistent w

ith the focus provided by govennnent-w
ide 

financial 
statem

ents. 
T

he 
proprietary 

funds 
required 

financial 
statem

ents 
include 

a 

16 



K
A

N
E

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 O

F
F

IC
E

 O
F

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

. 31 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
'S

 D
IS

C
U

S
S

IO
N

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

 
JU

N
E

 30, 2009 

S
tatem

ent o
f N

et A
ssets, S

tatem
ent o

f R
evenues, E

xpenses and C
hanges in F

und N
et 

A
ssets and a S

tatem
ent o

f C
ash F

low
s. 

• 
F

iduciary F
unds account for assets held by the R

O
E

 N
o. 31 in a trust capacity or as an

 
agent 

for 
individuals 

and 
private 

or 
governm

ental 
organizations. 

T
hese 

funds 
are 

custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve m
easurem

ent o
f results o

f 
operations. 

T
he fiduciary funds required financial statem

ents include a S
tatem

ent o
f 

F
iduciary N

et A
ssets. 

G
o

v
ern

m
en

t-W
id

e F
in

an
cial A

nalysis 

A
s noted earlier, net assets m

ay serve w
hen exam

ined over tim
e as one indicator o

f the 
financial position o

f the R
O

E
 N

o. 31. 
T

he net assets at the end o
f F

Y
 2009 and F

Y
 2008 

totaled 
$2,919,396 

and $2,609,288, 
respectively. 

T
he 

analysis that follow
s 

provides 
a 

sum
m

ary o
f the R

O
E

 N
o. 3

1
's net assets as o

f June 30. 

C
O

N
D

E
N

S
E

D
 S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 

G
overn

m
en

tal A
ctivities 

Business-T'y~e A
ctivities 

T
otal 

2009 
2008 

2009 
2008 

2009 
2008 

A
S

S
E

T
S

 
C

urrent assets 
$ 

3,635,552 
$ 

3,223,672 
$ 

381,523 
$ 

564,299 
$ 4,017,075 

$ 3,787,971 
C

apital assets, net o
f 

depreciation 
101,702 

158,478 
41,462 

49,125 
143,164 

207,603 

T
O

T
A

L
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 

3,737,254 
3,382,150 

422,985 
613,424 

4,160,239 
3,995,574 

C
urrent Iinbilitics 

1,153,129 
1,016,549 

68,254 
340,679 

1,221,383 
1,357.228 

N
oncurrent liabilities 

3,419 
5,227 

16,041 
23,831 

19,460 
29,058 

T
O

T
A

L
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

IE
S

 
1,156,548 

1.021.776 
84,295 

364,510 
1,240,843 

1,386,286 

N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 

Invested in 
capital 

assets, net o
f related debt 

96,475 
151,545 

17,632 
17,947 

114,107 
169,492 

R
estricted for tcacher 

professional developm
ent 

486,332 
455,142 

486,332 
455,142 

U
nrestricted 

1,997,899 
1,753,687 

321,058 
230,967 

2,318,957 
1,984,654 

T
O

T
A

L
 N

E
T

 A
S

S
E

T
S

 
$ 2,580,706 

$ 2,360,374 
$ 

338,690 
$ 

248,914 
$ 2,919,396 

$ 2,609,288 

T
he R

O
E

 N
o. 3

1
's net assets increased by $310,108 (12%

) from
 F

Y
 2008. 

T
he increase w

as 
prim

arily due to the excess o
f revenues over expenses for the Y

outh H
om

e E
ducation fund 

and the G
eneral S

tate A
id fund. 

In addition, net assets related to the T
eacher Institute F

und 
are considered restricted for teacher professional developm

ent. 
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C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 IN

 N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 

T
he follow

ing analysis show
s the changes in net assets for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 

2008. 

G
overnm

ental A
ctivities 

Business-T:n~e A
ctivities 

T
otal 

2009 
2008 

2009 
2008 

2009 
2008 

R
evenues: 

P
rogram

 revenues: 
C

hnrges for services 
$ 

151,835 
$ 

161.344 
$ 

436,474 
$ 

714,467 
$ 

588.309 
$ 

875,811 
O

perating grants and 
contributions 

3,597,584 
3,684.732 

3,597.584 
3,684,732 

G
eneral revenues: 
S

tate and local sources 
2,614 

92.659 
2,614 

92.659 
Interest 

26.640 
80.535 

3,105 
9.264 

29,745 
89.799 

O
n-behalf paym

ents 
271,041 

271,794 
271,041 

271,794 
L

oss on disposal o
fassels 

(45) 
(45) 

T
otal revenues 

4,049,714 
4,291,019 

439.579 
723,731 

4,489.293 
5,014,750 

E
xpenses: 
S

alaries 
1,303,462 

1,266,486 
1.303,462 

1,266,486 
B

enefits 
375,497 

367,889 
375,497 

367,889 
P

urchased services 
847,43 I 

796,488 
291,117 

570,990 
1,138,548 

1,367,478 
S

upplies and m
aterials 

158,762 
174,846 

9,888 
115,100 

168,650 
289,946 

C
apital expenditures 

1,287 
1,494 

16,431 
1,205 

17,718 
2.699 

D
epreciation 

60,372 
94,139 

15,367 
17,150 

75,739 
II 1,289 

P
aym

ents to other 
governm

ental units 
828,530 

741,294 
828,530 

741,294 
M

iscellaneous 
2,680 

1,609 
4,289 

O
n-behalf paym

ents 
271,041 

271,794 
271,041 

271,794 

T
otal expenses 

3,846,382 
3,717,110 

332,803 
706,054 

4,179,185 
4.423,164 

Incom
e before 

operating transfers 
203,332 

573,909 
106,776 

17,677 
310,108 

591,586 

O
perating transfers 

17,000 
(7,800) 

(17,000) 
7,800 

C
hange in net assets 

220,332 
566,109 

89,776 
25,477 

310,108 
591,586 

N
et assets, beginning 

2,360,374 
1,794,265 

248,914 
223,437 

2,609,288 
2,017,702 

N
et assets, ending 

$ 2,580,706 
$ 2,360,374 

$ 
338,690 

$ 
248,914 

$ 2,919,396 
$ 

2,609,288 

G
o

v
ern

m
en

tal A
ctivities 

R
evenues for governm

ental activities w
ere $4,049,714 and expenses w

ere $3,846,382. 
T

he 
decrease in program

 revenues w
as m

ainly due to the decrease in revenues for the Y
outh 

H
om

e E
ducation and M

cK
inney E

ducation for H
om

eless C
hildren grants by $162,868 and 

$59,760, respectively from
 F

Y
 2008 to F

Y
 2009. 

F
unds for these grants w

ere reduced in F
Y

 
2009. 

T
he decrease w

as how
ever offset by the receipt o

f additional general S
tate aid funds 

totaling $103,677, authorized by the A
m

erican R
ecovery and R

einvestm
ent A

ct o
f 2009, 

w
ith the goal o

f delivering em
ergency funding education to states. 

A
ll other expenditures 

w
ere proportionally increased or decreased to m

eet the funding level. 

18 



K
A

N
E

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 O

F
F

IC
E

 O
F

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

. 31 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
'S

 D
IS

C
U

S
S

IO
N

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

 
JU
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B
usiness-T

ype A
ctivities 

R
evenues for business-type activities w

ere $439,579 and expenditures w
ere $332,803. 

T
he 

decrease in revenues and expenditures is prim
arily attributed to the decrease in professional 

developm
ent and com

puter training w
orkshops conducted in FY

 2009. 

F
inancial A

nalysis o
f the R

O
E

 N
o. 31 F

n
n

d
s 

A
s previously noted, the R

O
E

 N
o. 

31 
uses 

fund 
accounting to ensure and dem

onstrate 
com

pliance w
ith finance-related legal requirem

ents. 
T

he K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f 

E
ducation 

N
o. 

31 's 
G

overnm
ental 

F
unds 

reported 
com

bined 
fund 

balances 
totaling 

$2,484,231. 

G
overnm

ental F
u

n
d

 H
ighlights 

• 
State funding o

f R
egional O

ffices o
f E

ducation has been stable in com
parison to the 

prevIO
us year. 

• 
T

here w
as an increase in the State aid foundation level from

 $5,734 to $5,859 in F
Y

 2009. 
• 

C
ertain S

tate and federal grants allocated to the R
O

E
 N

o. 31 from
 other governm

ental 
agencies w

ere reduced in F
Y

 2009. 
• 

Interest incom
e on cash and cash equivalents (certificates o

f deposit and sw
eep accounts) 

decreased 
due 

to 
the 

decrease 
in 

both 
interest 

rates 
and 

excess 
ftm

ds 
placed 

for 
investm

ent. 
• 

C
ounty suppO

li for the R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 31 

rem
ained at last year's 

funding level. 

P
ro

p
rietary

 F
u

n
d

 H
ighlights 

T
otal proprietary fund net assets increased by $89,776 (36%

). 
T

his is attribnted m
ainly to 

the excess o
f revenues over expenses o

f the E
S

C
 P

rofessional D
evelopm

ent L
ocal 2 fund and 

the K
ane C

ounty L
ibrary R

esources C
onsortium

 fund. 

F
iduciary F

u
n

d
 H

ighlights 

T
here w

as an increase of$42,803 (151 %
) in total fiduciary funds for F

Y
 2009. 

T
ransactions 

during FY
 2009 represent m

ainly transfers in and out o
f funds for the distributive and payroll 

funds. 

B
u

d
g

etary
 H

ighlights 

T
he R

O
E

 N
o. 31 annually prepares budgets for several funds w

hich serve as a guideline for 
activities 

and 
expenditures. 

T
he 

R
egional 

S
uperintendent 

annually 
prepares 

an 
O

ffice 
O

perations B
udget and subm

its it to the C
ounty B

oard for their approval. 
T

he 
O

ffice 
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O
perations B

udget covers a fiscal year w
hich runs from

 D
ecem

ber 1 to N
ovem

ber 30. 
A

ll 
grant budgets are prepared by the R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31 and subm
itted to the 

granting agency for approval. 
A

m
endm

ents m
ust be subm

itted under guidelines established 
by the granting agency. 

A
dditionally, all R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation funds are reported 

and included in our annual report. 
In addition, the Institute Fund is printed in a new

spaper o
f 

general circulation in K
ane C

ounty. 

C
ap

ital A
ssets 

R
O

E
 N

o. 3
1

's capital assets include office equipm
ent, com

puters, audio-visual equipm
ent, 

and office furniture. 
T

he R
O

E
 N

o. 31 m
aintains an inventory o

f capital assets w
hich have 

been accum
ulated over tim

e. 
F

or F
Y

 2009, total additions and retirem
ents am

ounted to 
$11 ,300 and $16,995, respectively. 

D
epreciation expense for F

Y
 2009 w

as $75,739. 

E
conom

ic F
acto

rs an
d

 N
ext Y

ears' B
udget 

A
t the tim

e these financial statem
ents w

ere prepared and audited, the R
egional O

ffice w
as 

aw
are o

f several existing circum
stances that could affect its financial health in the future: 

• 
T

he proposed S
tate aid foundation level for F

Y
 2010 has been increased to $6,089 per 

student. 
• 

C
ounty board support for R

O
E

 N
o. 31 is expected to rem

ain at FY
09 funding level. 

• 
S

everal federal grants are expected to be received in F
Y

 20 lO
in

 the fonn o
f general State 

aid and com
petitive grants in an effort to reduce the im

pact o
f the S

tate's current fiscal 
deficit on the school district operations. 

• 
T

he grow
th in the region is stabilizing. 

C
ontacting th

e K
an

e C
ounty R

egional O
ffice 

T
his financial report is designed to provide the R

egional O
ffice's citizens, taxpayers, clients, 

and 
other constituents 

w
ith a 

general 
overview

 o
f its 

finances 
and 

to 
dem

onstrate 
the 

accountability for the m
oney it receives. 

If the reader has questions concerning this report or 
needs additional financial infonnation, please contact the R

egional S
uperintendent o

f the 
R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31 at 210 S
outh S

ixth Street, G
eneva, IL

 
60134. 

For a 
m

ore detailed analysis and explanation o
f operations and program

s, the com
plete F

Y
 2009 

A
nnual R

eport is posted on the K
ane C

ounty R
O

E
 w

ebsite at http://w
w

w
.kaneroe.org. 
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JU
N

E
 30, 2009 

A
S

S
E

T
S

 

C
u

rren
t assets 

G
overnm

ental 
A

ctivities 

P
rim

ary
 G

overnm
ent 

B
usiness-T

ype 
A

ctivities 

C
ash and cash equivalents 

A
ccounts receivable 

$ 
2,790,729 

$ 
324,866 

$ 

D
ue from

 other governm
ental agencies 

T
otal current assets 

N
o

n
cu

rren
t assets 

C
apital assets, net 

T
O

T
A

L
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 

L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S
 

A
ccounts payable and accrued expenses 

D
ue to other funds 

D
ue to other governm

ental agencies 

L
eases payable 

T
otal current liabilities 

N
o

u
cu

rren
t liabilities 

L
eases payable 

T
O

T
A

L
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

IE
S

 

N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 

Invested in capital assets, net o
f related debt 

R
estricted for teacher professional developm

ent 

U
m

estricted 

T
O

T
A

L
 N

E
T

 A
S

S
E

T
S

 
$ 

11,019 
833,804 

3,635,552 

101,702 

3,737,254 

638,290 
29,963 

483,068 
1,808 

1,153,129 

3,419 

1,156,548 

96,475 
486,332 

1,997,899 

2,580,706 
$ 

18,222 
38,435 

381,523 

41,462 

422,985 

53,321 
(29,963) 
37,107 

7,789 
68,254 

16,041 

84,295 

17,632 

321,058 

338,690 

The notes to the financial statem
ents are an integral p

a
rt o

f this statem
ent. 

21 

$ 

E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

 

T
o

tal 

3,115,595 
29,241 

872,239 
4,017,075 

143,164 

4,160,239 

691,611 

520,175 
9,597 

1,221,383 

19,460 

1,240,843 

114,107 
486,332 

2,318,957 

2,919,396 
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F

O
R

 T
H

E
 Y

E
A

R
 E

N
D

E
D

 JU
N
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 3

0
, 2009 

P
rogram

 R
even

u
es 

N
et (E

xp
en

se) R
even

u
e an

d
 C

h
an

ges in N
et A

ssets 

O
p

eratin
g 

P
rim

ary G
overn

m
en

t 
C

harges for 
G

ran
ts an

d
 

G
overn

m
en

tal 
B

u
sin

ess-T
yp

e 

E
xp

en
ses 

Services 
C

on
trib

u
tion

 
A

ctivities 
A

ctivities 
T

otal 

F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
S

IP
R

O
G

R
A

M
S

 
P

rim
ary govern

m
en

t 

G
overn

m
en

tal activities: 
In

stru
ction

al services 
S

alaries 
$ 

1,303,462 
$ 

53,901 
$ 

1,355,574 
$ 

106.013 
$ 

$ 
106,013 

B
cnefil'i 

3
7

5
,4

9
7

 
15,578 

3
9

0
,5

0
9

 
3

0
,5

9
0

 
3

0
,5

9
0

 
P

urchased services 
847,431 

37,291 
827,413 

17,273 
17,273 

S
upplies and m

aterials 
158,762 

7,243 
162,555 

11,036 
11,036 

C
apital expenditures 

1,287 
106 

5,078 
3

,8
9

7
 

3
,8

9
7

 
D

epreciation expense 
60,372 

(60,372) 
(60,372) 

P
aym

ents to other governm
ents 

828,530 
3

7
.7

1
6

 
856,455 

65,641 
65,641 

A
d

m
in

istrative 
O

n
-b

eh
u

!fp
ay

m
en

ts 
271,041 

(271,041) 
(2

7
1

,0
4

1
) 

T
otal govern

m
en

tal activities 
3

,8
4

6
,3

8
2

 
151,835 

3,597,584 
(96,963) 

(9
6

,9
6

3
) 

B
u

sin
ess-typ

e activities: 

P
rofessional developm

ent 
332,803 

4
3

6
.4

7
4

 
103,671 

103,671 
T

otal b
u

sin
ess-typ

e activities 
332,803 

4
3

6
,4

7
4

 
103,671 

103,671 

T
otal p

rim
ary govern

m
en

t 
$ 

4,179,185 
$ 

5
8

8
,3

0
9

 
$ 

3,597,584 
(96,963) 

103,671 
6,708 

G
eneral revenues: 

L
ocal sources 

Intergovernm
ental 

2
,6

1
4

 
2,614 

Interest 
2

6
,6

4
0

 
3,105 

29,745 

O
n

-b
eh

alf paym
ents 

271,041 
271,041 

T
ransfers 

17,000 
(17,000) 

T
otal general revenues and transfers 

3
1

7
,2

9
5

 
(13,895) 

3
0

3
,4

0
0

 

C
h

an
g

e in n
el assets 

2
2

0
,3

3
2

 
89,776 

3
1

0
,1

0
8

 

N
et assets -

beginning 
2

,3
6

0
,3

7
4

 
248,914 

2
,6

0
9

,2
8

8
 

N
et assets -

ending 
$ 

2
.5

8
0

,7
0

6
 

$ 
338,690 

$ 
2

,9
1

9
,3

9
6

 

The notes 10 Ihejinancial statem
ents are an integral pari a/thiS statem

ent. 
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 EXHIBITC 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2009 

Total 
Nonmajor Special Governmental 

General Fnnd Edncation Fnnd Institnte Fond Revenne Fnnds Fnnds 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 868,360 $ 1,206,637 $ 474,271 $ 241,461 $ 2,790,729 
Accounts receivable 3,835 7,184 11,019 
Due from other funds 40,643 8,950 49,593 
Due from other governmental agencies 107,086 726,235 483 833,804 

TOTAL ASSETS 975,446 1,973,515 487,056 249,128 3,685,145 
tv 
w 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 13,276 593,500 724 30,790 638,290 
Due to other funds 29,570 49,986 79,556 
Due to other governmental agencies 483,068 483,068 

Total liabilities 42,846 1,126,554 724 30,790 1,200,914 

FUND BALANCES 

Unreserved, reported in: 
General fund 932,600 932,600 

Special revenue funds 846,961 486,332 218,338 1,551,631 

Total fund balances 932,600 846,961 486,332 218,338 2,484,231 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 975,446 $ 1,973,515 $ 487,056 $ 249,128 $ 3,685,145 

The 1I0tes to the fillancial slatemellts are all integral pari oj this statement. 
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T
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N
E

 30, 2009 

T
otal fund balances -

governm
ental funds 

A
m

ounts reported for governm
ental activities in the S

tatem
ent o

f N
et 

A
ssets are different because: 

C
apital assets used in governm

ental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

C
apital lease obligations are not due and payable in the current period 
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. 

N
et assets o

f governm
ental activities 

E
X

H
IB

IT
D

 

$ 
2,484,231 

$ 
101,702 

_
_

 --->(""5,"'22::.;7'-'-) 
96,475 

$ 
2,580,706 

The n
otes to the fin

an
cial statem

en
ts are G

il in
tegral p

a
rt 0/ this statem

ent. 

24 



KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 EXlliBITE 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Nonmajor Special Total 
General Fund Education Fund Institute Fund Revenue Funds Governmental Funds 

REVENUES 

Federal sources $ $ 876,207 $ $ $ 876,207 
State sources 246,211 2,471,511 3,655 2,721,377 
Local sources 

Intergovernmental 2,614 4,250 13,871 20,735 
Fees for services 45,582 88,132 133,714 
Interest 8,858 10,633 4,329 2,820 26,640 

On-behalf payments 271,041 271,041 

Total revenues 528,724 3,362,601 63,782 94,607 4,049,714 

EXPENDITURES 

'" Instructional services: en 
Salaries 126,392 1,156,051 21,019 1,303,462 

Benefits 35,142 334,406 5,949 375,497 

Purchased services 84,872 680,615 50,140 33,510 849,137 

Supplies and materials 3,025 131,201 2,452 22,084 158,762 

Payments to other governments 5,000 803,530 20,000 828,530 

On-behalf payments 271,041 271,041 

Capital expenditures 2,583 2,300 4,883 

Total expenditures 528,055 3,108,103 52,592 102,562 3,791,312 

EXCESS (DEFICmNCy) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 669 254,498 11,190 (7,955) 258,402 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in (out) 129,000 (132,000) 20,000 17,000 

EXCESS (DEFlCmNCy) OF REVENUES AND OTHER 

FINANCING SOURCES (USES) OVER EXPENDITURES 129,669 122,498 31,190 (7,955) 275,402 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 802,931 724,463 455,142 226,293 2,208,829 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 932,600 $ 846,961 $ 486,332 $ 218,338 $ 2,484,231 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part afthis statement. 
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N
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 C
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N
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A

T
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E
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C

T
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IT
IE

S
 

F
O

R
 T

H
E

 Y
E

A
R

 E
N

D
E

D
 JU

N
E

 30, 2009 

N
et change in fund balances 

A
m

ounts reported for governm
ental activities in the S

tatem
ent o

f A
ctivities are 

different because: 

G
overnm

ental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 
H

ow
ever, in the 

S
tatem

ent o
f A

ctivities the cost o
f those assets is allocated over 

their estim
ated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

C
apital expenditures 

D
epreciation expense 

R
epaym

ent oflong-term
 capital lease obligations is reported as an 

expenditure in governm
ental funds, but the repaym

ent reduces long-tenm
 

liabilities in the S
tatem

ent o
f N

et A
ssets. 

C
hange in net assets o

f governm
ental activities 

The notes to the fin
an

cial statem
en

ts are an integral p
a

rt a/th
is statem

ent. 
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$ 
3,596 

(60,372) 

E
X

H
IB

IT
F

 

$ 
275,402 

(56,776) 

1,706 

$ 
220,332 
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D
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E
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JU
N

E
 30, 2009 

A
S

S
E

T
S

 

C
u

rren
t assets 

C
ash and cash equivalents 

A
ccounts receivable 

D
ue from

 other funds 
D

ue from
 other governm

ental agencies 
T

otal current assets 

N
o

n
cu

rren
t assets 

C
apital assets, net 

T
O

T
A

L
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 

L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S
 

C
u

rren
t liabilities 

A
ccounts payable and accrued expenses 

D
ue to other funds 

D
ue to other governm

ental agencies 
L

eases payable 
T

otal current liabilities 

N
o

n
cu

rren
t liabilities 

L
eases payable 

T
O

T
A

L
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

IE
S

 

N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 

Invested in capital assets, net o
f related debt 

U
nrestricted 

T
O

T
A

L
 N

E
T

 A
S

S
E

T
S

 

E
X

H
IB

IT
G

 

B
usiness T

ype A
ctivities -

E
n

terp
rise F

u
n

d
s 

$ $ 

N
o

n
m

ajo
r 

P
ro

p
rietary

 F
u

n
d

s 

324,866 
18,222 

49,986 
38,435 

431,509 

41,462 

472,971 

53,321 
20,023 
37,107 

7,789 
118,240 

16,041 

134,281 

17,632 
321,058 

338,690 

T
he notes to the finanC

ial statem
ents are an integral p

a
rt o

f this statem
ent. 
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X
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E
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N
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 C
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N
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F
O

R
 T
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E

A
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N

D
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D
 JU

N
E

 30, 2009 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

 
L

ocal sources 
Intergovernm

ental 
F

ees for services 
T

otal operating revenues 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

 
P

urchased services 
S

upplies and m
aterials 

D
epreciation 

C
apital expenditures 

T
otal operating expenses 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 IN
C

O
M

E
 

N
O

N
O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
 

Interest 

IN
C

O
M

E
 B

E
F

O
R

E
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

 
T

ransfer out 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 IN
 N

E
T

 A
S

S
E

T
S

 

T
O

T
A

L
 N

E
T

 A
S

S
E

T
S

, B
E

G
IN

N
IN

G
 O

F
 Y

E
A

R
 

T
O

T
A

L
 N

E
T

 A
S

S
E

T
S

, E
N

D
 O

F
 Y

E
A

R
 

B
usiness T

ype A
ctivities -

E
nterprise F

u
n

d
s 

$ $ 

N
onm

ajor 
P

ro
p

rietary
 F

unds 

193,023 

243,451 
436,474 

291,117 

9,888 
15,367 
16,431 

332,803 

103,671 

3,105 

106,776 

(17,000) 

89,776 

248,914 

338,690 

The notes to the financial statem
enls are an integral parI o

f this stolem
enl. 
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F
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C
A

S
H

 F
L

O
W

S
 F

R
O

M
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S

: 
R

eceipts for w
orkshops and services 

P
aym

ents to suppliers 

N
et cash provided by operating activities 

C
A

S
H

 F
L

O
W

S
 F

R
O

M
 N

O
N

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
: 

C
ash transfers to other funds 

N
et cash used in noncapital fm

ancing activity 

C
A

S
H

 F
L

O
W

S
 F

R
O

M
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S
: 

P
urchase o

f capital assets 

P
rincipal paid on capital lease obligations 

N
et cash used in capital fm

ancing activities 

C
A

S
H

 F
L

O
W

S
 F

R
O

M
 IN

V
E

S
T

IN
G

 A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

: 
Interest 

N
et cash provided by investing activity 

N
E

T
 IN

C
R

E
A

S
E

 IN
 C

A
S

H
 A

N
D

 C
A

S
H

 E
Q

U
IV

A
L

E
N

T
S

 

C
A

S
H

 A
N

D
 C

A
S

H
 E

Q
U

IV
A

L
E

N
T

S
, B

E
G

IN
N

IN
G

 O
F

 Y
E

A
R

 

C
A

S
H

 A
N

D
 C

A
S

H
 E

Q
U

IV
A

L
E

N
T

S
, E

N
D

 O
F

 Y
E

A
R

 

R
econciliation o

f operating incom
e to n

et cash provided b
y operating activities: 

O
perating incom

e 

A
djustm

ents to reconcile operating incom
e to net cash provided 

by operating activities: 

D
ep

reciation
 

E
ffects o

f changes in assets and liabilities: 

A
ccounts receivable 

D
ue from

 (to) other funds 

D
ue from

 other governm
ental agencies 

A
ccounts payable and accrued expenses 

D
ue to other governm

ental agencies 
D

eferred reven
u

es 

N
et cash provided by operating activities 

E
X

H
IB

IT
 I 

B
nsiness T

yp
e A

ctivities· 
E

n
terp

rise F
n

n
d

s 

$ $ $ $ 

N
on

m
ajor 

P
rop

rietary F
u

n
d

s 

593,016 
(526,100) 

66,916 

{I 7,000) 

(17,000) 

(7,704) 

(7,348) 
(I5,052) 

3,105 

3,105 

37,969 

286,897 

324,866 

103,671 

15,367 

(17,441) 
(29,963) 

238,186 

(I70,701) 
(8,000) 

(64,203) 

66,916 

The n
otes 10 the financial statem

en
ts are an in

tegral part o
f this statem

ent. 
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 F

ID
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C
IA

R
Y

 N
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T
 A

SSE
T

S 
JU

N
E

 30, 2009 

A
SSE

T
S 

C
ash and cash equivalents 

D
ue from

 other governm
ental agencies 

T
O

T
A

L
 A

SSE
T

S 

L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S 

A
ccounts payable and accrued expenses 

D
ue to other governm

ental agencies 

T
O

T
A

L
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

m
S

 

T
he n

otes to the fin
an

cial statem
en

ts are an in
tegral p

a
rt o

f this statem
ent. 
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$ $ 

E
X

H
IB

IT
J 

50,253 

20,827 

71,080 

243 
70,837 

71,080 
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JU
N

E
 30, 2009 

N
O

T
E

 1 -
S

U
M

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 A

C
C

O
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N
T
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L
IC

IE
S

 

A
. R

eporting E
ntity 

K
ane 

C
ounty R

egional 
O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 

31 
operates under the 

School C
ode 

(A
rticles 

3 
and 

3A
 

o
f Illinois 

C
om

piled 
Statutes, 

C
hapter 

105). 
T

he 
R

egional 
S

uperintendent o
f Schools (Superintendent) serves as chief adm

inistrative officer o
f the 

R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 31 and is elected to the position for a four year tem

1 
pursuant to A

rticle 3 o
f Illinois C

om
piled Statutes, C

hapter 105. 
T

he principal financial 
duty o

f the S
uperintendent is to receive and distribute m

onies due to school districts from
 

general State aid, State categorical grants, and various other sources. 

T
he superintendent's responsibilities for adm

inistering the school educational service 
region program

s include, but are not lin1ited to, providing directions to teachers and 
school officials on science, art and teaching m

ethods; im
plem

enting the State B
oard o

f 
E

ducation's 
P

olicy 
Program

s; 
encouraging 

cam
araderie 

am
ong 

teachers' 
institute; 

m
aking public notice o

f unfilled teaching positions w
ithin the region; and ensuring o

f the 
safety, health and w

elfare o
f the students in the region by periodically inspecting the 

school buildings and ensuring that the bus drivers have valid driving licenses and are 
properly trained to operate the school buses. 

T
hese are the only activities considered to be part o

f (controlled by or dependent on) the 
K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31, as determ
ined by the application o

f 
the criteria set forth in G

overnm
ental A

ccounting Standards B
oard Statem

ent N
o. 14, T

he 
F

inancial R
eporting E

ntity. 
T

he criteria for inclusion o
f an entity include, but are not 

lim
ited to, legal standing, fiscal dependency, im

position o
f w

ill and potential for financial 
benefit or burden. 

K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 31 has determ

ined that no other outside 
agency m

eets any o
f the above criteria and, therefore, no other agency has been included 

as a com
ponent unit in the financial statem

ents. 
F

urthelm
ore, the K

ane C
ounty R

egional 
O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 31 does not consider itself to be a com

ponent unit o
f any other 

entity. 

B
. 

G
overnm

ent-w
ide and F

und F
inancial Statem

ents 

T
he governm

ent-w
ide financial 

statem
ents (i.e., the Statem

ent o
f N

et A
ssets and the 

S
tatem

ent o
f A

ctivities) report inform
ation on all o

f the nonfiduciary activities o
f the 

prim
ary govem

m
ent. 

F
or the m

ost part, the effect o
f interfund activity has been rem

oved 
from

 these statem
ents. 

T
he statem

ents distinguish betw
een those activities o

f the R
O

E
 

that are governm
ental in nature and those that are considered business-type activities. 

G
overnm

ental activities norm
ally are supported by operating grants and contributions, 
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charges for services and intergovernm
ental revenues. 

B
usiness-type activities norm

ally 
are supported by an10unts assessed or received from

 local sources for the R
O

E
 program

s. 

T
he S

tatem
ent o

f N
et A

ssets presents the K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 

31 ' s nonfiduciary assets and liabilities w
ith the differences reported as net assets. 

N
et 

assets o
f the R

O
E

 are classified as follow
s: 

Invested in C
apital A

ssets -
represent the R

O
E

's total investm
ent in capital assets. 

T
here 

is no outstanding debt related to these assets at this tim
e. 

R
estricted N

et A
ssets -

represent resources in w
hich the R

O
E

 is legally obligated to spend 
in accordance w

ith restrictions im
posed by enabling legislation. 

U
nrestricted N

et A
ssets -

represent resources used for transactions relating to the general 
operations 

o
f the R

O
E

 
and 

m
ay be used 

at the discretion o
f m

anagem
ent to 

m
eet 

expenses for any purpose. 

T
he S

tatem
ent o

f A
ctivities dem

onstrates the degree to w
hich the direct expenses o

f a 
given function or segm

ent are offset by program
 revenues. 

D
irect expenses are those that 

are clearly identifiable w
ith a specific function or segm

ent. 
P

rogram
 revenues include (l) 

charges to users w
ho purchase, use or directly benefit from

 goods, services, or privileges 
provided by a given function 

or segm
ent, 

and (2) 
grants 

and 
contributions that are 

restricted to m
eeting the operational or capital requirem

ents o
f a particular function o

r 
segm

ent. 
Item

s not properly included am
ong program

 revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues. 

M
ajor individual governm

ental funds are reported as separate colum
ns 

in the fund financial statem
ents. 

C
. 

M
easurem

ent F
ocus. B

asis o
f A

ccounting, and F
inancial S

tatem
ent P

resentation 

T
he financial 

statem
ents o

f K
ane 

C
ounty R

egional 
O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 

31 
are 

prepared in accordance w
ith generally accepted accounting principles (G

A
A

P
). 

T
he 

K
ane 

C
ounty 

R
egional 

O
ffice 

o
f E

ducation 
N

o. 
31 

applies 
all 

applicable 
G

A
SB

 
pronolm

cem
ents 

as 
w

ell 
as 

the 
follow

ing 
pronouncem

ents 
issued 

on 
or 

before 
N

ovem
ber 30, 

1989, unless these pronouncem
ents conflict w

ith or contradict G
A

S
B

 
pronouncem

ents: 
F

inancial A
ccounting S

tandards B
oard Statem

ents and Interpretations, 
A

ccounting 
P

rinciples 
B

oard 
O

pinions, 
and 

A
ccounting 

R
esearch 

B
ulletins 

o
f the 

C
om

m
ittee on A

ccounting Procedure. 

T
he governm

ent-w
ide financial 

statem
ents are reported using the econom

ic resources 
m

easurem
ent focus 

and the accrual basis o
f accounting, as 

are the proprietary fund 
financial statem

ents. 
R

evenues are recorded w
hen earned and expenses are recorded 

w
hen a liability is inculT

ed, regardless o
f the tim

ing o
f related cash flow

s. 
G

rants and 
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sim
ilar revenues are recognized as soon as all eligibility requirem

ents im
posed by the 

provider have been m
et. 

G
overnm

ental fund and fiduciary fund financial statem
ents are reported using the current 

financial resources m
easurem

ent focus and the m
odified accrual basis o

f accounting. 
R

evenues are recognized w
hen they are both m

easurable and available. 
"M

easurable" 
m

eans the am
ount o

f the transaction can be detennined and "available" m
eans collectible 

w
ithin the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities o

f the 
current 

period. 
T

he 
K

ane 
C

ounty R
egional 

O
ffice 

o
f E

ducation N
o. 

31 
considers 

revenues as available if they are collected w
ithin 60 days after year end. 

E
xpenditures 

are generally recorded w
hen a liability is incurred, as under accrual 

accounting. 
In 

applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernm
ental revenues, the legal and 

contractual requirem
ents o

fth
e num

erous individual program
s are used as guidance. 

T
here are, how

ever, essentially tw
o types o

f these revenues. 
In one, m

onies m
ust be 

expended on the specific purpose or project before any anl0unts w
ill be paid; therefore, 

revenues are recognized based upon the expendit1lT
es recorded. 

In the other, m
onies are 

virtually unrestricted as to purpose o
f expenditure and are usually revocable only for 

failure 
to 

com
ply 

w
ith 

prescribed 
com

pliance 
requirem

ents. 
T

hese 
resources 

are 
reflected as revenues at the tim

e o
f receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria 

are m
et. 

P
rivate-sector 

standards 
o

f 
accounting 

and 
financial 

reporting 
issued 

prior 
to 

D
ecem

ber I, 1989, generally are follow
ed in the governm

ent-w
ide financial statem

ents to 
the extent that those standards do not conflict w

ith or contradict the guidance o
f the 

G
overnm

ental A
ccounting S

tandards B
oard. 

W
hen both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the R

O
E

's 
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

D
. 

F
und A

ccounting 

T
he accounts o

f the K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 31 are organized on 

the 
basis 

o
f funds, 

each o
f w

hich 
is 

considered a 
separate accounting entity. 

T
he 

operations o
f each fund are accounted for w

ith a separate set o
f self-balancing accounts 

that 
com

prise 
its 

assets, 
liabilities, 

nm
d 

balance, 
revenue, 

and 
expenditures. 

T
he 

resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes 
for w

hich they are to be spent and the m
eans by w

hich spending activities are controlled. 
T

he 
various 

funds 
are 

sum
m

arized by type 
in the 

basic financial 
statem

ents. 
T

he 
follow

ing sum
m

arizes the fund types used: 
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G
overnm

ental F
und T

ypes 

G
ovem

m
ental F

unds are those through w
hich m

ost govem
m

ental functions are fm
anced. 

T
he acquisition, use and balances o

f the expendable financial resources and the related 
current liabilities are accounted for through govem

m
ental funds. 

G
eneral 

F
und -

A
ccounts for 

resources traditionally associated w
ith 

govem
m

ent 
w

hich are not required, legally or by sound financial m
anagem

ent, to be accounted 
for in another fund. 

T
he general fund is reported as a m

ajor governm
ental fund in the 

financial statem
ents. T

he follow
ing are included in the general funds: 

R
O

E
/IS

C
 O

perations -
A

ccounts for grant m
onies received for, and paym

ent o
f 

expenditures in assisting schools in all areas o
f school im

provem
ent. 

R
egional P

rogram
 D

evelopm
ent -

A
ccounts for m

onies received for, and paym
ent 

o
f expenditures 

to 
provide 

for 
the 

general 
im

provem
ent 

and 
expansion 

o
f 

education w
ithin K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31 including the 
educational progranl for the students at the K

ane C
ounty Juvenile Justice C

enter 
(Y

outh H
om

e E
ducation). 

S
pecial R

evenue F
unds -

A
ccounts for the proceeds o

f specific revenue sources (other 
than those 

accounted 
for 

in 
the 

F
iduciary 

F
unds) 

that 
are 

legally 
restricted 

to 
expenditures for specified purposes. 

T
he K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation 

N
o. 31 reported the follow

ing special revenue funds as m
ajor governm

ental funds. 

E
ducation Fund -

A
ccounts for State and federal grant m

onies received for, and 
paym

ent of, expenditures incuned in adm
inistering nunlerous grant aw

ards w
hich 

include: 

T
echnology for 

S
uccess -

A
ccounts for 

grant m
onies received 

for, 
and 

paym
ent o

f expenditures to support learning technology services to the local 
school districts. 

Federal 
Special 

E
ducation -

ID
E

A
 

F
low

-T
hrough -

A
ccounts 

for 
grant 

m
onies received for, and paym

ent o
f expenditures to enhance the capacity o

f 
schools to safely and effectively educate all students by applying research­
based behavior support system

s that m
axim

ize academ
ic achievem

ent o
f 

student and teacher outcom
es. 

R
egional 

Safe 
Schools 

-
A

ccounts 
for 

grant 
m

onies 
received 

for, 
and 

paym
ent o

f expenditures o
f the alternative school program

 for at-risk youth, 
creating alternative placem

ent for those students. 
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G
eneral S

tate A
id -

A
ccounts for grant m

onies received for, and paym
ent o

f 
expenditures for regional learning academ

y supplem
ents. 

A
R

R
A

 -
G

eneral S
tate A

id (S
tate F

iscal S
tabilization F

und -
E

ducation S
tate 

G
rants, 

R
ecovery 

A
ct) 

-
A

ccounts 
for 

grant 
m

onies 
received 

for, 
and 

paym
ent of, expenditures related to helping stabilize state budgets in order 

to m
inim

ize the possible im
pact o

f the S
tate's current fiscal 

deficit and 
avoid 

reductions 
in 

education. 
T

his 
is 

funded 
by 

the 
A

m
erican 

R
einvestm

ent and R
ecovery A

ct (A
R

R
A

) -
G

eneral S
tate A

id. 

T
ruants' A

lternative and O
ptional E

ducation P
rogram

 (T
A

O
E

P
) -

A
ccounts 

for grant m
onies received for, and paym

ent o
f expenditures o

f the T
ruants 

A
lternative P

rogram
. 

S
O

S
 -

0
4

 T
eacher O

uality -
A

ccounts for grant m
onies received for, and 

paym
ent o

f expenditures for im
proving teacher quality through professional 

developm
ent. 

F
unds 

are 
received 

from
 

the 
P

rofessional 
D

evelopm
ent 

A
lliance o

f the W
ill C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 56. 

T
itle II -

T
eacher Q

uality -
L

eadership -
A

ccounts for grant m
onies received 

for, 
and 

paym
ent 

of, 
expenditures 

incurred 
in 

providing 
professional 

developm
ent training 

to teachers 
for 

im
provem

ent o
f instruction in the 

classroom
. 

T
itle I 

-
S

chool 
Im

provem
ent &

 
A

ccountabilitv -
A

ccounts 
for 

federal 
m

onies 
received 

for, 
and 

paym
ent 

of, 
expenditures 

o
f the 

T
itle 

I 
-

A
ccountability grant. 

T
his grant provides school districts w

ith nm
ds to 

carry out their school im
provem

ent and corrective action responsibilities 
under S

ection 1116( c) o
f T

itle I w
hile offering students in schools identified 

for im
provem

ent and corrective action the opportunity to transfer to anotller 
higher perform

ing public 
school, 

including 
a 

public 
charter w

itllin 
the 

district. 

M
cK

inney E
ducation for H

om
eless C

hildren -
A

ccounts for grant m
onies 

received 
for, 

and 
paym

ent 
o

f expenditures 
to 

provide 
counseling 

and 
educational support to hom

eless children and their fam
ilies. 

T
he program

s 
are funded 

by a F
ederal S

tew
art B

. 
M

cK
inney E

ducation for H
om

eless 
C

hildren and Y
outh G

rant adm
inistered through the W

ill C
ounty R

egional 
O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 56. 

Y
outh H

om
e E

ducation -
A

ccounts for 
grant m

onies 
received for, 

and 
paym

ent o
f expenditures to provide an educational program

 for the students 
at the K

ane C
ounty Juvenile Justice C

enter. 
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P
rincipal M

entoring -
A

ccounts for grant m
onies received for, and paym

ent 
o

f expenditures to ensure that every new
 principal in Illinois receives a high­

quality 
m

entoring 
experience 

that 
focuses 

on 
professional 

developm
ent 

experiences and enhances a new
 principal's leadership. 

In tlus program
, 

new
 leaders receive m

entoring from
 proven, trained m

entors w
ho are paired 

w
ith new

 principals based on geography, grade level, and need. 

P
re-S

chool 
M

onitoring 
-

A
ccounts 

for 
grant 

m
onies 

received 
for, 

and 
paym

ent o
f expenditures to reim

burse personnel w
ho evaluate pre-schools 

that receive funds from
 the universal pre-school program

 initiated in 2006 
by the Illinois G

overnor's office. 

Institute F
und -

A
ccounts for fees collected for the registration and renew

al o
f 

teaching 
certificates. 

T
hese 

fees 
are 

used 
to 

defray 
adm

inistrative 
expenses 

incidental to teachers' institutes, w
orkshops or m

eetings o
f a professional nature 

that are 
designed to 

prom
ote the professional 

grow
th o

f teachers 
or for 

tile 
purpose o

f defraying tile expense o
f any general or special m

eeting o
f teachers o

r 
school persO

lm
el, w

hich has been approved by the K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice 
o

f E
ducation N

o. 31. 
A

ll funds generated rem
ain restricted until expended only 

on the aforem
entioned activities. 

N
onm

ajor 
Special 

R
evenue 

F
unds 

-
T

he 
K

ane 
C

ounty 
R

egional 
O

ffice 
o

f 
E

ducation N
o. 

31 
reported the follow

ing 
special revenue 

funds 
as 

non-m
ajor 

govel1llilental funds. 

G
eneral E

ducation D
evelopm

ent (G
E

D
) -

A
ccounts for the revenues and 

expenditures associated w
ith the processing o

f applications for the high 
school level test o

f G
eneral E

ducation D
evelopm

ent and the issuance o
f 

diplom
as upon the successful com

pletion o
f tile exam

ination. 

B
us D

river T
raining -

A
ccounts for the revenues received from

 individuals 
and contractors to 

sponsor instructional training 
courses for 

school 
bus 

drivers. 

S
upervisory 

-
A

ccounts 
for 

travel 
and 

other expenditures 
necessary 

to 
perfonn 

the 
duty 

o
f supervising 

tile 
school 

districts 
in 

K
ane 

C
ounty 

R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 31. 

L
ocal 

T
ruancy -

A
ccounts for revenues 

received from
 

local 
sources 

to 
address the truancy problem

 in K
ane C

ounty. 
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P
roprietary F

und T
ypes 

E
nterprise F

unds -
to account for resources from

 fees charged directly to those entities or 
individuals that use its services. 

N
onm

ajor P
roprietary F

unds -
the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31 
reported the follow

ing proprietary funds as non-m
ajor funds: 

E
ducation S

ervice C
enter (E

S
C

) P
rofessional D

evelopm
ent L

ocal 2 -
A

ccounts 
for 

local m
onies 

received 
for, 

and paym
ent o

f expenditures from
 

w
orkshops 

conducted by K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 31. 

V
isual M

edia C
ooperative -

A
ccounts for funds received and disbursed by the 

R
egional 

S
uperintendent as 

adm
inistrative agent for 

the K
ane C

ounty V
isual 

M
edia C

ooperative. 
T

he V
isual M

edia C
ooperative is a cooperative o

f school 
districts, w

hich m
aintains a library o

f educational film
s. 

N
ew

 and replacem
ent 

film
s and videos are financed from

 rental charges to users. 

T
echnology -

A
 collaboration betw

een the N
ortheastern Illinois R

egional O
ffices 

o
f E

ducation to provide com
puter w

orkshops for the teachers o
f N

orthern Illinois. 
T

his fund is locally funded by A
rea 1, w

hich is com
prised o

f tlle N
ortheastern 

Illinois R
egional O

ffices o
f E

ducation. 

L
ocal C

ounselors A
cadem

y -
A

ccounts for local revenues and disbursem
ents 

related to C
ounselors A

cadem
y P

rogram
. 

C
rim

inal B
ackground Investigation -

A
ccounts for the fees 

received from
 the 

school districts to pay for the processing o
f fingerprinting the substitute teachers 

and expenditures incurred providing this service to the school districts. 

K
ane C

ounty H
um

an R
esources C

onsortium
 -

A
ccounts for m

onies received for, 
and paym

ent o
f expenditures for the K

ane C
ounty H

um
an R

esources C
onsortium

 
program

. 

K
ane C

ounty L
ibrary R

esources C
onsortium

 -
A

ccounts for m
onies received for 

and 
paym

ent 
o

f expenditures 
for 

the 
K

ane 
C

ounty 
P

ublic 
S

chools 
L

ibrary 
R

esource P
rogram

. 

D
iscovery E

ducation U
nited S

treanling -
A

ccounts for local revenues received 
from

 school districts w
hich are used to 

pay for the 
digital video-on-dem

and 
service provided by D

iscovery E
ducation. 
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F
iduciary F

und T
ypes 

F
iduciary Funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity or as an agent for 

individuals or private or govelm
nental organizations. 

T
he F

iduciary Funds include the 
follow

ing: 

A
gency 

Funds 
-

A
ccount 

for 
assets 

held 
as 

an 
agent 

for 
individuals, 

private 
organizations, 

other 
governm

ental 
units 

and/or other funds. 
A

gency 
Funds 

are 
custodial 

in nature 
(assets equal liabilities) and do 

not 
involve 

m
easurem

ent 
o

f 
operations. 

T
he A

gency Funds include the follow
ing: 

Payroll 
-

A
ccounts 

for 
m

onies 
received 

and 
subsequent paym

ent o
f payroll 

expenditures. 

Juvenile D
rug C

ourt -
T

he R
O

E
 provides fiscal support to the Sixteenth Judicial 

C
ircuit C

ourt for a program
 to assist juvenile drug offenders in D

eK
alb, K

ane and 
K

endall C
ounties. 

T
he program

 is funded by a grant from
 the C

ity o
f A

urora. 

D
istributive 

-
A

ccounts 
for 

State 
and 

federal 
funds 

appropriated 
to 

V
alley 

E
ducation for E

m
ploym

ent System
 and to school districts w

hich are paid through 
the K

ane 
C

ow
lty R

egional 
O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 

31. 
T

hese proceeds are 
received and disbursed to these entities and accounted for in a trustee capacity. 

K
ane 

C
ares 

-
A

ccounts 
for 

m
onies 

received, 
and 

disbursem
ents 

paid 
in 

adm
inistering 

the 
K

ane 
C

ares 
program

 
funded 

by the 
K

ane 
C

ounty 
H

ealth 
D

epartm
ent. 

E. 
R

evenues -
E

xchange and N
on-exchange T

ransactions 

R
evenue resulting from

 exchange transactions, in w
hich each party gives and receives 

essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis w
hen the exchange takes place. 

O
n a m

odified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in w
hich the resources 

are m
easurable and becom

e available. 

N
on-exchange transactions, in w

hich the R
O

E
 receives valne w

ithout directly glvm
g 

value in return, includes grants and donations. 
O

n an accrual basis, revenue from
 grants 

and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in w
hich all eligibility requirem

ents have 
been satisfied. 

E
ligibility requirem

ents include tim
ing requirem

ents, w
hich specify the 

year w
hen the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year w

hen use is first 
perm

itted, m
atching requirem

ents, in w
hich the R

O
E

 m
ust provide local resources to be 

used for specific purpose, and expenditure requirem
ents, in 

w
hich the resources 

are 
provided to the R

O
E

 on a reim
bursem

ent basis. 
O

n a m
odified accrual basis, revenue 

from
 non-exchange transactions m

ust be available before it can be recognized. 
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F. 
C

ash and C
ash E

quivalents 

F
or presentation in the financial 

statem
ents, investm

ents w
ith an original m

aturity o
f 

three m
onths or less at the tim

e they are purchased by the R
O

E
 are considered to be cash 

equivalents. 
Investm

ents 
w

ith an original 
m

aturity o
f m

ore 
than three 

m
onths 

are 
reported as investm

ents. 

G
. 

C
apital A

ssets 

C
apital assets result from

 expenditures in the governm
ental and proprietary funds. 

T
hese 

assets 
are 

reported 
in the 

governm
ental 

and 
business-type 

activities 
colum

n 
o

f the 
governm

ent-w
ide S

tatem
ent o

f N
et A

ssets but are not reported in the fund financial 
statem

ents for the governm
ental funds. 

C
apital assets are recorded at cost at tim

e o
f acquisition or fair value at the date o

f 
donation. 

T
he R

O
E

 capitalizes item
s costing $500 or m

ore. D
epreciation is calculated on 

a straight-line basis over the estim
ated useful lives (five to seven years) o

f the respective 
assets. 

H
. 

D
eferred R

evenues 

T
he R

O
E

 reports lm
earned deferred revenue in the governm

ental fund B
alance S

heet. 
D

eferred and unearned revenue arises w
hen potential revenue does not m

eet both the 
m

easurable and available criteria for recognition in the current period. 

1. 
M

anagem
ent E

stim
ates 

T
he preparation o

f financial statem
ents in conform

ity w
ith generally accepted accounting 

principles requires m
anagem

ent to m
alce estim

ates and assum
ptions that affect certain 

reported am
ounts and disclosures. 

A
ctual results could differ from

 those estim
ates. 

J. 
B

udgets and B
udgetary A

ccO
lm

ting 

K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 31 did not form

ally adopt a budget for 
the year ended June 30, 2009 and is not legally required to do so. 

T
he Illinois S

tate 
B

oard o
f E

ducation requires budgets for certain State and F
ederal program

s. 
T

hese 
budgets w

ere used to prepare the B
udgetary C

om
parison S

chedules for the follow
ing 

progran1S: 

G
eneral F

und: 
• 

R
O

E
IIS

C
 O

perations 
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S
pecial R

evenue F
unds: 

• 
T

eclm
ology for S

uccess 
• 

R
egional Safe S

chools 
• 

T
ruants' A

lternative and O
ptional E

ducation P
rogram

 (T
A

O
E

P
) 

K
. 

R
evenue from

 F
ederal and S

tate G
rants 

R
evenues from

 federal and State grant aw
ards are recorded net o

f the am
ount due to the 

S
tate for the unused portion o

f the grant or the anlount carried over to the follow
ing fiscal 

year project. 
A

m
ounts due to the S

tate or carried over to the follow
ing year project are 

recorded as liabilities. 

L
. 

Interest R
evenue 

Illinois S
tate B

oard o
f E

ducation (IS
B

E
) funds received by the R

O
E

 for the D
istributive 

F
und accrue interest for the period o

f tim
e betw

een the receipt o
f the funds and clearance 

o
f checks to the recipient. 

In accordance w
ith an agreem

ent dated M
ay 24, 1988 w

ith the 
school district boards served, interest earned on D

istributive F
und deposits is transferred 

to the 
G

eneral F
und to 

offset w
ire 

service and 
other bank charges incurred by the 

D
istributive F

und. 

D
istributive F

und interest earned and related charges are recognized as revenues and 
expenditures in the general fund. 

M
. N

ew
 A

ccounting P
ronouncem

ents 

E
ffective July I, 2008, the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31 adopted 
the follow

ing accounting pronouncem
ents: 

• • • 

G
A

S
B

 
S

tatem
ent 

N
o. 

49, 
A

ccollnting 
and 

F
inancial 

R
eporting Jar 

P
ollution 

R
em

ediation O
bligations, addresses accounting and financial reporting standards for 

pollution (including contam
ination) rem

ediation obligations, w
hich are obligations to 

address 
the 

current 
or 

potential 
detrim

ental 
effects 

o
f 

existing 
pollution 

by 
participating in pollution rem

ediation activities such as site assessm
ents and cleanups. 

G
A

S
B

 
S

tatem
ent N

o. 
52, 

L
and and O

ther R
eal E

state 
H

eld as 
Investm

ents 
by 

E
ndow

m
ents, 

w
hich 

im
proves 

the 
quality 

o
f 

financial 
reporting 

by 
requiring 

endow
m

ents to report their land 
and 

other real 
estate investm

ents at fair value, 
creating consistency in reporting am

ong sim
ilar entities that exist to invest resources 

for the purpose o
f generating incom

e. 

G
A

S
B

 
S

tatem
ent 

N
o. 

55, 
The 

H
ierarchy 

o
j G

enerally 
A

ccepted 
A

ccounting 
P

rinciples Jar State and L
ocal G

overnm
ents, 

w
hich incorporates the hierarchy o

f 
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G
A

A
P for State and local governm

ents into the G
A

S
B

's authoritative literature. 
It is 

intended to 
m

ake it easier for preparers o
f S

tate and local governm
ent financial 

statem
ents to identify and apply the "G

A
A

P
 hierarchy," w

hich consists o
f sources o

f 
accounting principles used in the preparation o

f financial statem
ents so that they are 

presented in confonnity w
ith G

A
A

P
 and the fram

ew
ork for selecting those principles. 

G
A

SB
 

S
tatem

ent N
o. 

56, 
C

odification 
o

f A
ccounting and F

inancial 
R

eporting 
G

uidance 
C

ontained 
in 

the 
A

IC
P

A
 

Statem
ents 

on 
A

uditing 
Standards, 

w
hich 

incorporates into the G
A

S
B

's authoritative literature certain accounting and financial 
reporting 

guidance 
presented 

in 
the 

A
m

erican 
Institute 

o
f 

C
ertified 

P
ublic 

A
ccountants' 

S
tatem

ents on A
uditing S

tandards. 
T

his statem
ent 

addresses three 
issues 

not 
included 

in 
the 

authoritative 
literature 

that 
establishes 

accounting 
principles-related party transactions, going concern considerations, and subsequent 
events. 

T
he presentation o

f principles used in the preparation o
f financial statem

ents 
is m

ore appropriately included in accounting and financial reporting standards rather 
than in the auditing literature. 

T
here w

ere no significant im
pacts on the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 
31 ' s financial statem

ents as a result o
f adopting the above statem

ents. 

N
O

T
E

 2 -
C

A
S

H
 A

N
D

 IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
S

 

D
eposits 

T
he 

K
ane 

C
ounty R

egional 
O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 

31 
utilizes several 

different bank 
accounts 

for its various 
activities. 

T
he book balance o

f such 
accounts is 

$3,145,037 
at 

June 30, 2009, w
hile the bank balance w

as $3,212,490. 
T

he difference betw
een the above 

am
ounts prim

arily represents checks that have been issued but have not yet cleared the bank 
as o

f June 30, 2009. 
O

f the total bank balances as o
f June 30, 2009, $288,487 w

as secured 
by federal depository insurance, and $2,924,003 w

as collateralized by securities pledged by 
the R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 3
1

's financial institution on behalf o
f the R

egional 
O

ffice. 

Investm
ents 

T
he 

R
O

E
's 

established 
investm

ent 
policy 

follow
s 

the 
S

tate 
o

f Illinois 
P

ublic 
F

unds 
Investm

ent A
ct w

hich 
authorizes 

the 
R

O
E

 
to 

purchase 
certain obligations 

o
f the 

U
.S. 

T
reasury, federal 

agencies and instrum
entalities; certificates o

f deposit and tim
e deposits 

covered by F
ederal depository insurance; com

m
ercial paper o

f U
.S. corporations w

ith assets 
exceeding $500,000,000, if such paper is rated at the highest classification established by at 
least tw

o standard rating services; m
oney m

arket funds and the Illinois Funds. 
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A
s o

f June 30, 2009, the K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 31 had investm

ents 
w

ith carrying and fair values o
f $20,811 

and $20,231, respectively invested in the Illinois 
F

unds M
oney M

arket. 

C
redit R

isk 

A
t June 30, 2009, the Illinois F

unds M
oney M

arket F
und had a S

tandards and P
oor's A

A
A

m
 

rating. 
T

he pool is audited annually by an outside independent auditor and copies o
f the 

report are distributed to participants. 
A

lthough not subject to direct regulatory oversight, the 
fund is adm

inistered by the Illinois S
tate T

reasurer in accordance w
ith the provisions o

f the 
Illinois P

ublic F
unds Investm

ents A
ct, 30 IL

C
S

 235. 
A

ll investm
ents are fully collateralized. 

Interest R
ate R

isk 

T
he Illinois F

unds M
oney M

arket F
und, created by the Illinois G

eneral A
ssem

bly, enables 
custodians o

f public funds an investm
ent option w

ith a com
petitive rate o

f return on fully 
collateralized investm

ents and im
m

ediate access to the funds. 
T

he investm
ent policy o

f the 
Illinois 

F
unds 

M
oney 

M
arket 

F
unds 

states 
that 

unless 
authorized 

specifically 
by 

the 
T

reasurer, a m
inim

um
 o

f 75%
 o

f its investm
ents shall have less than one-year m

aturity and 
no investm

ent shall exceed tw
o years m

aturity. 

C
oncentration o

f C
redit R

isk 

U
nless specifically authorized by the T

reasurer, the Illinois F
unds M

oney M
arket F

und's 
investm

ent policy lim
its investm

ent categories to not exceed 25%
 o

f the portfolio, w
ith the 

exception o
f cash equivalents and U

.S
. T

reasury securities. 
F

urther, certificates o
f deposits 

cannot exceed 10%
 o

f any single financial institution's total deposits. 

N
O

T
E

 3 -
D

U
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R

O
M

 O
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H
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R
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T
he K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 3
1

's G
eneral F

und, S
pecial R

evenue 
F

unds, 
E

nterprise F
unds and 

A
gency F

und have 
funds 

due to 
and 

from
 

various 
other 

governm
ental units w

hich consist o
f the follow

ing: 

D
ue F

rom
 O

ther G
overnm

ental A
gencies: 

Illinois S
tate B

oard o
f E

ducation 
W

ill C
ounty R

O
E

 N
o. 56 -

P
rofessional D

evelopm
ent A

lliance 
S

chool A
ssociation for S

pecial E
ducation in D

uP
age C

ounty 
L

ocal school districts 
K

ane C
ounty H

ealth D
epartm

ent 

T
otal 

42 

$ 
709,244 

98,442 
24,760 
39,793 
20,827 

$ 
893,066 
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D
ue T

o O
ther G

overnm
ental A

gencies: 
L

ocal school districts 
$ 

591,012 

N
O
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E

 4 -
C

A
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S
S

E
T
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A
 sm

nm
ary o

f changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follow
s: 

B
alance 

B
alance 

July 1,2008 
A

dditions 
R

etirem
ents 

June 30, 2009 
G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
 FU

N
D

S 
Furniture and equipm

ent 
$ 

806,499 
$ 

3,596 
$ 

(16,995) 
$ 

793,100 
L

ess: 
accum

ulated depreciation 
(648,021) 

(60,372) 
16,995 

(691,398) 

C
apital assets, net 

$ 
158,478 

$ 
(56,776) 

$ 
$ 

101,702 

PR
O

PR
IE

T
A

R
Y

 FU
N

D
S 

E
quipm

ent 
$ 

81,505 
$ 

7,704 
$ 

$ 
89,209 

L
ess: 

accum
ulated depreciation 

(32,380) 
(15,367) 

(47,747) 

C
apital assets, net 

$ 
49,125 

$ 
(7,663) 

$ 
$ 

41,462 

N
O

T
E

 5 -
C

A
P
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A

L
 L

E
A

S
E

 

K
ane C

O
lm

ty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 31 

has entered into lease agreem
ents as 

lessee for financing the acquisition o
f copiers. 

T
hese lease agreem

ents qualify as a capital 
lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value o

f the 
future m

inim
m

n lease paym
ents as o

f the inception date in the capital assets account. 

T
he future m

inim
um

 lease obligations and the net present value o
f these lease paym

ents as o
f 

June 30, 2009, w
ere as follow

s: 

2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

Y
ear E

nding June 30 

T
otal m

inim
um

 lease paym
ents 

L
ess: 

am
ount representing interest 

P
resent value o

f m
inim

um
 lease paym

ents 

43 

A
m

ount 
$ 

11,341 
11,341 
9,319 

555 
32,556 

3,499 

$ 
29,057 
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N
O

T
E

 6 -
S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

 A
N

D
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E
N

S
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N
 P

L
A

N
 C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
S

 

T
he salaries o

f the R
egional Superintendent and the A

ssistant R
egional S

nperintendent are 
paid by the State o

f Illinois. 
T

he salaries o
f all 

other em
ployees o

f the K
ane C

ounty 
R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31 are paid by K
ane C

ounty. 
P

ension plan contributions 
associated w

ith these salaries are also paid either by the State o
f Illinois or K

ane C
ow

lty. 

T
he K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31 reim
burses K

ane C
ounty for salaries 

paid as w
ell as the em

ployer contributions m
ade to the Illinois M

lm
icipal R

etirem
ent F

und 
(IM

R
F). 

P
ension plan obligations for K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31 
em

ployees (except for visual m
edia personnel) are included in the statistics IM

R
F provides to 

K
ane C

ounty. 

N
O

T
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T
eachers' R

etirem
ent System

 o
f the State o

f Illinois 

T
he 

K
ane 

C
ounty R

egional 
O

ffice 
o

f E
ducation N

o. 
31 

participates 
in 

the 
T

eachers' 
R

etirem
ent System

 o
f the State o

f Illinois (T
R

S). 
T

R
S is a cost-sharing m

ultiple-em
ployer 

defined benefit pension plan that w
as created by the Illinois legislature for the benefit o

f 
Illinois public school teachers em

ployed outside the city o
f C

hicago. 
T

he Illinois P
ension 

C
ode outlines the benefit provisions o

f T
R

S, and am
endm

ents to the plan can be m
ade only 

by 
legislative action w

ith the G
overnor's approval. 

T
he State o

f Illinois m
aintains the 

prim
ary responsibility for funding the plan, but contributions from

 participating em
ployers 

and m
em

bers are also required. 
T

he T
R

S B
oard o

f T
rustees is responsible for the system

's 
adm

inistration. 

T
R

S 
m

em
bers 

include 
all 

active 
nonarm

uitants 
w

ho 
are 

em
ployed 

by 
a 

T
R

S
-covered 

em
ployer to provide services for w

hich teacher certification is required. T
he active m

em
ber 

contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2009, w
as 9.4 percent o

f creditable earnings. 
T

hese contributions, w
hich m

ay be paid on behalf o
f em

ployees 
by the em

ployer, 
are 

subm
itted to T

R
S by the em

ployer. 
T

he active m
em

ber contribution rate w
as also 

9.4 
percent for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007. 

In addition, virtually all em
ployers and 

m
em

bers pay a contribution to the T
eachers' 

H
ealth Insurance Security (T

H
IS) Fund, a 

separate fund in the State T
reasury that is not a part o

f this retirem
ent plan. 

T
he em

ployer 
T

H
IS F

und contribution w
as 0.63 

percent during the year ended June 30, 2009, and the 
m

em
ber T

H
IS F

und health insurance contribution w
as 0.84 percent. 

T
he State o

f Illinois m
akes contributions directly to T

R
S on behalf o

f tlle K
ane C

ounty 
R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31's T
R

S
-covered em

ployees. 
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• 
O

n-behalf C
ontributions. 

T
he State o

f Illinois m
akes em

ployer pension contributions 
on behalf o

f the K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o

.3
!. 

For the year ended 
June 30, 2009, State o

f Illinois contributions w
ere based on 17.08 percent o

f creditable 
em

nings not paid from
 federal funds, and the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation 

N
o. 31 recognized revenue and expenditures o

f $44,156 in pension contributions that the 
State o

f Illinois paid directly to T
R

S. 
F

or tile years ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 
2007, the State o

f Illinois contribution rates as percentages o
f creditable earnings not paid 

from
 

federal 
funds 

w
ere 

13.11 
percent 

($33,796) 
and 

9.78 
percent 

($29,522), 
respectively. 

T
he State 

contributions to 
T

R
S for the years ended June 30, 2009 aJ.1d 

June 30, 2008 w
ere based on an actuarial form

ula. 
T

he State contribution for tile year 
ended June 30, 2007 w

as based on a dollar aJ.I1ount specified by the statute and w
as not 

actuarially determ
ined. 

T
he K

ane C
m

m
ty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31 
m

alces 
other types o

f em
ployer 

contributions directly to T
R

S. 

• 
2.2 F

o
rm

u
la C

ontributions. 
E

m
ployers contribute 0.58 

percent o
f total 

creditable 
earnings for the 2.2 form

ula change. 
T

he rate is specified by statute. 
C

ontributions for 
the year ended June 30, 2009 w

ere $1,499. 
C

ontributions for the years ended June 30, 
2008, and June 30, 2007, w

ere $1,513 and $1,751, respectively. 

• 
F

ed
eral an

d
 T

ru
st F

u
n

d
 C

ontributions. 
W

hen T
R

S m
em

bers are paid from
 federal 

and special trust funds adm
inistered by the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation 

N
o. 

31, 
there 

is 
a 

statutory requirem
ent 

for 
the 

K
ane 

C
ounty R

egional 
O

ffice 
o

f 
E

ducation N
o. 31 to pay an em

ployer pension contribution from
 those funds. 

U
nder a 

policy adopted by the T
R

S B
oard o

f T
rustees that w

as first effective for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2006, em

ployer contributions for em
ployees paid from

 federal and special 
trust funds w

ill be the saJ.l1e as tile State contribution rate to T
R

S. 
F

or the year ended 
June 30, 2009, tile em

ployer pension contribution w
as 17.08 percent o

f salaries paid from
 

federal 
and 

special trust funds. 
F

or the 
years ended June 

30, 2008 
and 2007, tile 

em
ployer contribution w

as 
13.11 

and 9.78 percent o
f salaries paid from

 federal 
and 

special trust funds, respectively. 
F

or tile year ended June 30, 2009, salaries totaling 
$1,425 

w
ere 

paid 
from

 
federal 

and 
special 

trust 
funds 

that 
required 

em
ployer 

contributions o
f $243. 

F
or the years ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, required 

contributions o
f K

ane C
ounty R

egional 
O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 

31 
w

ere $508 and 
$7,599, respectively. 

• 
E

arly
 R

etirem
ent O

ption. 
T

he K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 31 is 

also required to m
alce one-tim

e em
ployer contributions to T

R
S for m

em
bers retiring 

under the E
arly R

etirem
ent O

ption (E
R

O
). 

T
he paym

ents vary depending on tile age and 
salary o

f the m
em

ber and under w
hich E

R
O

 prograJ.l1 the m
em

ber retires. 
U

nder Public 
A

ct 94-0004, a "P
ipeline E

R
O

" prograJ.l1 w
as provided for m

em
bers to retire under the 

saJ.l1e term
s as the E

R
O

 prograJ.l1 that expired June 30, 2005, provided they m
et certain 
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conditions and 
retired 

on 
or before July 

I, 2007. 
If m

em
bers 

did not m
eet these 

conditions, they can retire under the "M
odified E

R
O

" program
 w

hich requires higher 
m

em
ber and em

ployer contributions to T
R

S. 
A

lso, under M
odified E

R
O

, Public A
ct 94-

0004 elim
inates the w

aiver o
f m

em
ber and em

ployer E
R

O
 contributions that had been in 

effect for m
em

bers w
ith 34 years o

f service (unless the m
em

ber qualified for the P
ipeline 

E
R

O
). 

U
nder the Pipeline E

R
O

 program
, the m

axim
um

 em
ployer contribution w

as 100 
percent o

f the m
em

ber's highest salary used in the final 
average salary calculation. 

U
nder the M

odified E
R

O
, the m

axim
um

 em
ployer contribution is 117.5 percent. 

B
oth 

the 
100 percent and 

ll7
.5

 percent m
axim

um
s apply w

hen the m
em

ber is age 55 
at 

retirem
ent. 

F
or the year ended June 30, 2009, the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f 
E

ducation N
o. 31 paid $0 to T

R
S for em

ployer contributions under the E
R

O
 program

. 
F

or the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, the K
ane C

ounty R
egional 

O
ffice o

f 
E

ducation N
o. 31 did not have any paym

ents to T
R

S for em
ployer E

R
O

 contributions. 

• 
S

alary Increases O
ver 6 P

ercent an
d

 E
xcess S

ick L
eave. 

Public A
ct 94-0004 added 

tw
o additional em

ployer contributions to T
R

S. 

• 
If an em

ployer grants salary increases over 6 percent and those salaries are used to 
calculate a retiree's final average salary, the em

ployer m
akes a contribution to T

R
S. 

T
he contribution w

ill cover the difference in actuarial cost o
f the benefit based on 

actual salary increases and the benefit based on salary increases o
f up to 6 percent. 

For the year ended June 30, 2009, the K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 

31 paid $0 to T
R

S for em
ployer contributions due on salary increases in excess o

f 6 
percent. 

For the years ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, the K
ane C

ounty 
R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31 did not have any paym
ents to T

R
S for em

ployer 
contribntions due on salary increases in excess o

f 6 percent. 

• 
If an em

ployer grants sick leave days in excess o
f the norm

al annnal allotm
ent and 

those days are used as T
R

S service credit, the em
ployer m

alces a contribution to T
R

S. 
T

he contribution is based on the num
ber o

f excess sick leave days used as service 
credit, the highest salary used to calculate final average salary, and the T

R
S total 

norm
al cost rate (18.67 percent o

f salary during the year ended June 30, 2009). 
F

or 
the year ended June 30, 2009, the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31 
paid $0 to T

R
S for sick leave days granted in excess o

f the norm
al annual allotm

ent. 
F

or the years ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, the K
ane C

ounty R
egional 

O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31 did not have any paym
ents to T

R
S for sick leave days 

granted in excess o
f the norm

al am
m

al allotm
ent. 

T
R

S financial infonnation, an explanation o
f T

R
S

' benefits, and descriptions o
f m

em
ber, 

em
ployer and State funding requirem

ents can be found in the T
R

S C
om

prehensive A
nnual 

F
inancial R

eport for the year ended June 30, 2008. 
T

he report for the year ended June 30, 
2009, is expected to be available in late 2009. 

T
he reports m

ay be obtained by w
riting to the 

T
eachers' 

R
etirem

ent 
System

 
o

f the 
State 

o
f Illinois, 

P.O
. 

B
ox 

19253, 
2815 

W
est 
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W
ashington S

treet, S
pringfield, IL

 62794-9253. 
T

he m
ost current report is also available on 

the T
R

S
 w

eb site at trs.illinois.gov. 

Illinois M
unicipal R

etirem
ent F

und 

P
lan

 D
escription 

T
he K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31's defined benefit pension plan for 
regular em

ployees provides retirem
ent and disability benefits, post retirem

ent increases, and 
death benefits to plan m

em
bers and beneficiaries. 

T
he K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f 
E

ducation N
o. 31 's plan is affiliated w

ith the Illinois M
unicipal R

etirem
ent F

und (IM
R

F
), an 

agent m
ultiple-em

ployer plan. 
B

enefit provisions are established by statute and m
ay only be 

changed by the G
eneral A

ssem
bly o

f the State o
f Illinois. 

IM
R

F
 issues a publicly available 

financial report that includes financial statem
ents and required supplem

entary inform
ation. 

T
he report m

ay be obtained on-line at w
w

w
.im

rf.org. 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
olicy 

A
s set by statute, the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 
31's regular plan 

m
em

bers are required to 
contribute 4.50%

 o
f their annual covered salary. 

T
he statutes 

require em
ployers to contribute the am

ount necessary, in addition to m
em

ber contributions, 
to finance the retirem

ent coverage o
f its ow

n em
ployees. 

T
he em

ployer contribution rate for 
calendar year 2008 w

as 0%
 o

f annual covered payroll. 
T

he K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f 

E
ducation N

o. 31 
also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits and supplem

ental 
retirem

ent benefits, 
all 

o
f w

hich are pooled at the IM
R

F
 level. 

C
ontribution rates for 

disability and death benefits are set by the IM
R

F
 B

oard o
f T

rustees, w
hile the supplem

ental 
retirem

ent benefits rate is set by statute. 

A
n

n
u

al P
ension C

ost 

F
or 2008, the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 3
1

's annual pension cost o
f $0 

for the regular plan w
as equal to the K

ane C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31's 
required and actual contributions. 

F
iscal Y

ear 
E

n
d

ed
 

12/31/08 
12/31107 
12/31106 

T
H

R
E

E
 -

Y
E

A
R

 T
R

E
N

D
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 
A

n
n

u
al P

ension 
C

o
st(A

P
C

) 
$ 

P
ercentage o

f 
A

P
C

 C
o

n
trib

u
ted

 
100%

 
100%

 
100%

 

N
et P

ension 
O

bligation 
$ 

T
he 

required 
contribution 

w
as 

determ
ined 

as part 
o

f the 
D

ecem
ber 

31, 
2005 

actuarial 
valuation using the entry age norm

al actuarial cost m
ethod. 

T
he actuarial assum

ptions at 
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D
ecem

ber 31, 2005 included (a) 7.50%
 investm

ent rate o
f return (net o

f adm
inistrative and 

direct investm
ent expenses), (b) projected salary increases o

f 4.00%
 a year, attributable to 

inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from
 

0.4%
 to 

10.0%
 per year 

depending on age and service, attributable to seniority/m
erit, and (d) post-retirem

ent benefit 
increases o

f3
%

 arm
ually. 

T
he actuarial value o

f K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation 
N

o. 31 plan assets w
as detelm

ined using techniques that spread the effects o
f short-term

 
volatility in the m

arket value o
f investm

ents over a five-year period w
ith a 15%

 corridor 
betw

een the actuarial and m
arket value o

f assets. 
T

he K
ane C

ounty R
egional O

ffice o
f 

E
ducation N

o. 31' s regular plan's overfunded actuarial accrued liability is being anlortized as 
a level percentage o

f projected payroll on a closed basis. 
T

he rem
aining am

ortization period 
at D

ecem
ber 31, 2008 w

as 5 years. 

F
u

n
d

ed
 S

tatus an
d

 F
unding P

rogress 

A
s o

f D
ecem

ber 31, 2008, the m
ost recent actuarial valuation date, the regular plan w

as 
110.80%

 funded. 
T

he actuarial accrued liability for benefits w
as $39,659 and the actuarial 

value o
f assets w

as $43,942, resulting in an overfunded actuarial accrued liability (U
A

A
L

) o
f 

$4,283. 
T

he covered payroll (annual payroll o
f active em

ployees covered by the plan) w
as 

$0 and since the plan is overfunded, there is no ratio o
f the U

A
A

L
 to the covered payroll. 

T
he schedule o

f funding progress, presented as R
SI follow

ing the notes to the financial 
statem

ents, presents m
ultiyear trend inform

ation about w
hether the actuarial value o

f plan 
assets is increasing or decreasing over tim

e relative to the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits. 

N
O

T
E

 8 -
O

N
-B

E
H

A
L

F
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
 

T
he 

breakdow
n 

o
f the 

on-behalf paym
ents 

by 
the 

State 
o

f Illinois 
for 

the 
R

egional 
S

uperintendent and the A
ssistant R

egional S
uperintendent o

f the K
ane C

ounty R
egional 

O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 31 are as follow
s: 

R
egional S

uperintendent's salary 
R

egional S
uperintendent's fringe benefits 

(includes State paid insurance) 
A

ssistant R
egional S

uperintendent's salary 
A

ssistant R
egional S

uperintendent's fringe benefits 
(includes State paid insurance) 

T
R

S C
ontributions 

T
otal 

48 

$ $ 

100,762 

22,421 
90,686 

13,016 
44,156 

271,041 
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S
alary 

and 
benefit 

data 
for 

the 
R

egional 
S

uperintendent 
and 

A
ssistant 

R
egional 

S
uperintendent w

ere 
calculated 

based on data provided 
by the 

Illinois 
S

tate 
B

oard 
o

f 
E

ducation. 

N
O

T
E

 9 -
D

E
F

IC
IT

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

 

T
he follow

ing funds have deficit fund balances as o
f June 30, 2009: 

G
eneral FW

ld 
R

O
E

/IS
C

 O
perations 

$ 
16,089 

E
ducation F

und 
T

ec\m
ology for S

uccess 
2,773 

S
O

S
 -

Q
4 T

eacher Q
uality 

3,603 
T

itle I -
S

chool Im
provem

ent &
 A

ccountability 
15,679 

P
rincipal M

entoring 
45,736 

P
reschool M

onitoring 
21,851 

N
onm

ajor S
pecial R

evenue F
unds 

B
us D

river T
raining 

109 

N
onm

ajor P
ropIietary F

unds 
D

iscovery E
ducation U

nited S
tream

ing 
1,030 

T
otal D

eficit FW
ld B

alances 
$ 

106,870 

A
bove deficit fund balances are expected to correct them

selves through paym
ents from

 the 
S

tate, receipts from
 local sources and interest incom

e in the next fiscal year. 

N
O

T
E

 10 -
IN

T
E

R
F

U
N

D
 T

R
A

N
S

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 

(a) D
u

e F
ro

m
 (T

o) O
th

er F
u

n
d

s 

T
he follow

ing is a SW
l1l1lary o

f am
ounts due from

 (to) other funds as o
f June 30, 2009: 

F
und 

G
eneral F

und -
R

egional P
rogram

 D
evelopm

ent 
E

ducation F
und -

T
echnology for S

uccess 
E

ducation F
und -

M
cK

inney E
ducation for H

om
eless C

hildren 
E

ducation F
und -

P
rincipal M

entoring 
Institute F

und 
N

onm
ajor P

roprietary F
und -

E
S

C
 P

rofessional D
evelopm

ent L
ocal 2 

N
onm

'\ior P
roprietary F

und -
T

echnology L
ocal 

T
otal 

49 

D
ue F

rom
 

O
ther F

unds 
$ 

6,823 
29,570 
4,250 
8,950 

49,986 

$ 
99,579 

D
ue T

o 
O

ther F
unds 

$ 
29,570 

49,986 

13,200 
6,823 

$ 
99,579 
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(b) T
ran

sfers F
rom

 (T
o) O

th
er F

u
n

d
s 

T
he com

position o
f inter fund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follow

s: 

F
und 

G
eneral F

und -
R

egional P
rogram

 D
evelopm

ent 
E

ducation F
und -

G
eneral S

tate A
id 

E
ducation F

und -
Y

outh H
om

e E
ducation 

Institute F
und 

P
roprietary F

unds -
E

S
C

 P
rofessional D

evelopm
ent L

ocal 2 
P

roprietary F
unds -

C
rim

inal B
ackground Investigation 

P
roprietary F

unds -
K

ane C
ounty H

um
an R

esources C
onsortium

 

T
otal 

50 

T
ransfers-out 

$ 
2,000 

130,000 

50,000 
18,000 

$ 
200,000 

T
ransfers-in 

$ 
129,000 

20,000 
51,000 

$ 
200,000 
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A
ctuarial 

V
aluation 
D

ate 
12/31/08 
12/31107 
12/31/06 
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IL
L

IN
O

IS
 M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L

 R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 FU

N
D

 
S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
IN

G
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 

A
ctuarial 

A
ccrued 

A
ctuarial 

L
iability 

U
nfunded 

V
alue o

f 
(A

A
L

)-
A

A
L

 
F

unded 
A

ssets 
E

n
try

 A
ge 

(V
A

A
L

) 
R

atio 
(a) 

(b) 
(b-a) 

(a/b) 
$ 

43,942 
$ 

39,659 
$ 

(4,283) 
110.80%

 
46,851 

39,535 
(7,316) 

118.51 %
 

42,971 
38,136 

(4,835) 
112.68%

 

51 

C
overed 

P
ayroll 
(c) 

$ 

U
A

A
L

asa 
P

ercentage 
o

f C
overed 

P
ayroll 

((b-a)/c) 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
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C

O
M

B
IN
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G

 SC
H
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U

LE O
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C
C

O
U

N
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A
S

S
E

T
S

 

C
ash and cash equivalents (overdraft) 

D
ue from

 other governm
ental agencies 

T
O

T
A

L
 A

SSETS 

L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S
 A

N
D

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

 (D
E

F
IC

IT
) 

L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S
 

A
ccounts payable and accrued expenses 

D
ue to other funds 

T
otal liabilities 

F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

 (D
E

F
IC

IT
) 

U
nreserved 

T
O

T
A

L
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

IE
S

 A
N

D
 F

U
N

D
 

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

 (D
E

F
IC

IT
) 

52 

R
O

E
IISC

 
O

p
eration

s 

$ 
(109,024) 

106,211 

(2,813) 

13,276 

13,276 

(16,089) 

$ 
(2,813) 

SC
H

ED
U

LE 1 

R
egion

al 
P

rogram
 

D
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$ 
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$ 
$ 
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932,600 
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 SCHEDULE 4 
EDUCATION FUND 
COMBlNlNG SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

Truants' 
Federal Special ARRA- Alternative and SOS -Q4 

Technology for Education - IDEA Regional General General Optional Education Teacher 
Success Flow-Through Safe Schools State Aid State Aid Program (TAOEP) Quality 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents (overdrafts) $ (26,920) $ (15,319) $ 145,926 $ 523,643 $ 56,621 $ (47,657) $ (31,230) 

Due from other funds 6,823 

Due from other governmental agencies 30,472 24,760 441,576 130,985 32,890 

TOTAL ASSETS 10,375 9,441 587,502 523,643 56,621 83,328 1,660 

V> 
V> 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 13,148 174,797 56,621 72,325 5,263 

Due to other funds 
Due to other governmental agencies 400,455 

Totalliabilities 13,148 575,252 56,621 72,325 5,263 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

Unreserved (2,773) 9,441 12,250 523,643 11,003 (3,603) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND 
BALANCES (DEFICIT) $ 10,375 $ 9,441 $ 587,502 $ 523,643 $ 56,621 $ 83,328 $ 1,660 
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 
EDUCATION FUND 
COMBUITNGSCHEDULEOFACCOUNTS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

Title II - Teacber 
Quality - Leadershlp 

ASSETS 

Cash and eash equivalents (overdrafts) $ 48.296 
Due from other funds 

Due from other governmental agencies 3,593 

TOTAL ASSETS 51,889 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 39,927 
Due to other funds 
Due to other governmental agencies 

Total liabilities 39,927 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

Unreserved 11,962 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND 
BALANCES (DEFICIT) $ 51,889 

Title I - Scbool 
Improvement & 
Accountability 

$ 195,821 

61,959 

257,780 

190,846 

82,613 
273,459 

(15,679) 

$ 257,780 

McKinney 
Education for YoutbHome Principal 

Homeless Cbildren Education Mentoring 

$ 38,646 $ 337,645 $ 
29,570 4,250 

68,216 337,645 4,250 

3,422 34,135 
49,986 

3,422 34,135 49,986 

64,794 303,510 (45,736) 

$ 68,216 $ 337,645 $ 4,250 

Prescbool 
Monitoring 

$ (18,835) 

(18,835) 

3,016 

3,016 

(21,851) 

$ (18,835) 

SCHEDULE 4 
(CONTINUED) 

Total 

$ 1,206,637 
40,643 

726,235 

1,973,515 

593,500 
49,986 

483,068 
1,126,554 

846,961 

$ 1,973,515 



KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 
EDUCATION FUND SCIlEDULES 
COMBINING SCIlEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Truants' 
Federal Special ARRA- Alternative and SOS-Q4 

Technology for Education - IDEA Regional General General Optional Education Teacher 
Success Flow-Through Safe Schools State Aid State Aid Program (TAOEP) Quality 

REVENUES 

Federal sources $ $ 93.016 $ $ $ 103.677 $ $ 
State sources 78,833 971,466 350,697 354,985 99,383 
Local sources 

Intergovernmental 
Interest 352 4,768 111 

Total revenues 78,833 93,016 971,818 355,465 103,677 355,096 99,383 

V> 
-..J EXPENDITURES 

Salaries 48,248 67,060 241,157 118,092 61,041 252,636 13,280 
Benefits 12,879 19,812 78,486 24,552 11,468 79,401 3,491 
Purchased services 19,168 5,564 32,541 25,034 30,968 22,743 43,522 
Supplies and materials 1,858 744 200 340 1,255 
Capital expenditures 2,300 

Payments to other governments 615,124 38,355 

Total expenditures 80,295 92,436 971,466 168,422 103,677 355,120 99,903 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES (1,462) 580 352 187,043 ' (24) (520) 

OTIlER FINANCING USES 

Transfers out (2,000) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENcy) OF REVENUES AND OTIIER 
FINANCING USES OVER EXPENDITURES (1,462) 580 352 185,043 (24) (520) 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR (1,311) 8,861 11,898 338,600 11,027 (3,083) 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR $ (2,773) $ 9,441 $ 12,250 $ 523,643 $ $ 11,003 $ (3,603) 



v. 
00 

KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 
EDUCATION FUND 
COMBlNlNG SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Title I - School 
Title II - Teacher Improvement & 

McKinney 
Education for 

Qnality - Leadership Accountability Homeless Children 

REVENUES 

Federal sources $ 92,561 $ 534,117 $ 52,836 
State sources 
Local sources 

Intergovernmental 
Interest 82 1,852 318 

Total revenues 92,643 535,969 53,154 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries 35,407 

Benefits 5,714 

Purchased services 52,528 339,634 7,883 
Supplies and materials 19,858 91,597 4,013 

Capital expenditures 
Payments to other governments 11,261 138,790 

Total expenditures 83,647 570,021 53,017 

EXCESS (DEFICIENcy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 8,996 (34,052) 137 

OTHER FINANCING USES 

Transfers out 

EXCESS (DEFICIENcy) OF REVENUES AND OTHER 
FINANCING USES OVER EXPENDITURES 8,996 (34,052) 137 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,966 18,373 64,657 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR $ 11,962 $ (15,679) $ 64,794 

Youth Home 
Education 

$ 
588,099 

3,150 
591,249 

319,130 
98,603 
16,994 
7,784 

442,511 

148,738 

(130,000) 

18,738 

284,772 

$ 303,510 

Principal 
Mentoring 

$ 

4,250 

4,250 

41,036 

41,036 

(36,786) 

(36,786) 

(8,950) 

SCHEDULES 
(CONTINUED) 

Preschool 
Monitoring Total 

$ $ 876,207 
28,048 2,471,511 

4,250 
10,633 

28,048 3,362,601 

1,156,051 
334,406 

43,000 680,615 
3,552 131,201 

2,300 

803,530 
46,552 3,108,103 

(18,504) 254,498 

(132,000) 

(18,504) 112,498 

(3,347) 724,463 

$ (45,736) $ (21,851) $ 846,961 
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 
EDUCATION FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

REVENUES 

State sources 
Local sources 

Interest 
Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Salaries 
Benefits 
Purchased services 
Supplies and materials 
Capital expenditures 
Payments to other governments 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR 

$ 

$ 

Techoologl:: for Success 

Budget Actual 

78,833 $ 78,833 $ 

78,833 78,833 

48,000 48,248 
11,860 12,879 
18,973 19,168 

78,833 80,295 

(1,462) $ 

(1,311 ) 

$ (2,773) 

SCHEDULE 6 

Regional Safe Schools 
Variance Variance 
Favorable Favorable 

(Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

$ 971,466 $ 971,466 $ 

352 352 
971,466 971,818 352 

(248) 245,984 241,157 4,827 
(1,019) 108,260 78,486 29,774 

(195) 29,999 32,541 (2,542) 
2,000 1,858 142 
5,000 2,300 2,700 

580,223 615,124 (34,901) 
(1,462) 971,466 971,466 

(1,462) $ 352 $ 352 

11,898 

$ 12,250 



KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 SCHEDULE 6 
EDUCATION FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

(CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Truants' Alternative and Optional Education Program 

ITAOEP) Total 
Variance Variance 
Favorable Favorable 

nudgc~_ Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

REVENUES 
Stute sources $ 354,985 $ 354,985 $ $ 1,405,284 $ 1,405,284 $ 

Local sources 
Interest III III 463 463 

Total revenues 354,985 355,096 III 1,405,284 1,405,747 463 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries 255,261 252,636 2,625 549,245 542,041 7,204 
Benefits 79,024 79,401 (377) 199,144 170,766 28,378 

'" Purchased services 20,200 22,743 (2,543) 69,172 74,452 (5,280) 0 
Supplies and materials 500 340 160 2,500 2,198 302 
Capital expendHures 5,000 2,300 2,700 
Payments to other governments 580,223 615,124 (34,901) 

Total expenditures 354,985 355,120 (135) 1,405,284 1,406,881 (1,597) 

EXCESS (DEFlCmNCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (24) $ (24) $ (1,134) $ (1,134) 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 11,027 21.614 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR $ 11,003 $ 20,480 



0\ -

KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2009 

GED 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents (overdraft) $ 57,691 

Accounts receivable 6,306 

Due from other governmental agencies 483 

TOTAL ASSETS 64,480 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 8,468 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

Unreserved 56,012 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND 
BALANCES (DEFICIT) $ 64,480 

$ 

$ 

SCHEDULE 7 

Bus Driver 
Traiuing Supervisory Local Truaucy Total 

(983) $ 39 $ 184,714 $ 241,461 

878 7,184 
483 

(105) 39 184,714 249,128 

4 22,318 30,790 

(109) 39 162,396 218,338 

(105) $ 39 $ 184,714 $ 249,128 
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 1N FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Bus Driver 
GED Traiuiug Supervisory 

REVENUES 

State sources $ $ 2,655 $ 1,000 
Local sources 

Fees for services 67,339 6,318 

Interest 1,132 36 5 
Total revenues 68,471 9,009 1,005 

EXPENDITURES 

Salaries 21,019 

Benefits 5,949 
Purchased services 23,690 8,205 1,000 

Supplies and materials 21,657 182 
Payments to other governments 

Total expenditures 72,315 8,387 1,000 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES 

OVER EXPENDITURES (3,844) 622 5 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEG1NN1NG OF YEAR 59,856 (731) 34 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR $ 56,012 $ (109) $ 39 

SCHEDULES 

Local Truancy Total 

$ $ 3,655 

14,475 88,132 
1,647 2,820 

16,122 94,607 

21,019 

5,949 

615 33,510 

245 22,084 
20,000 20,000 
20,860 102,562 

(4,738) (7,955) 

167,134 226,293 

$ 162,396 $ 218,338 



KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 SCHEDULE 9 
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
COMBINlNG STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

Criminal 
ESC Professional Visual Media Local Counselors Background 

Devel0l!ment Local 2 Cool!erative Technolol!J' Academ~ Investigation 
ASSETS 

Cnrrent assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,357 $ 49,995 $ 29,476 $ 45,523 $ 55,408 
Accounts receivable 5,173 7,073 3,156 2,820 
Due from other funds 49,986 
Due from other governmental agencies 1,125 

Total current assets 94,641 49,995 36,549 48,679 58,228 

Noncnrrent assets 
Capital assets, net 24,045 14,590 338 2,489 

TOTAL ASSETS 118,686 49,995 51,139 49,017 60,717 

0\ 
w 

LIABlLITIES 

Current liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 10,560 2,480 34,031 
Due to other funds 13,200 6,823 

Due to other governmental agencies 37, I 07 
Leases payable 7,789 

----

Total current liabilities 31,549 37, I 07 6,823 2,480 34,031 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Leases payable 16,041 

TOTAL LIABlLITmS 47,590 37, I 07 6,823 2,480 34,031 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 215 14,590 338 2,489 

Unrestricted 70,881 12,888 29,726 46,199 24,197 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 71,096 $ 12,888 $ 44,316 $ 46,537 $ 26,686 



KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 SCHEDULE 9 
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
COMBlNlNG STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

Kane County Human Kane County Library Discovery Education 
Resources Consortium Resources Consortium United Streaming Total 

ASSETS 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 65,754 $ 35,133 $ 5,220 $ 324,866 
Accounts receivable 18,222 
Due from other funds 49,986 
Due from other governmental agencies 22,000 15,310 38,435 

Total current assets 87,754 50,443 5,220 431,509 

Noncurrent assets 
Capital assets, net 41,462 

TOTAL ASSETS 87,754 50,443 5,220 472,971 
0\ 

""" 
LlABILITIES 

Current liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 6,250 53,321 

Due to other funds 20,023 

Due to other governmental agencies 37,107 

Leases payable 7,789 

Total current liabilities 6,250 118,240 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Leases payable 16,041 

TOTAL LlABlLIT1ES 6,250 134,281 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 17,632 

Unrestricted 87,754 50,443 (1,030) 321,058 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 87,754 $ 50,443 $ (1,030) $ 338,690 



KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 SCHEDULE 10 
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
COMBlNING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Criminal 
ESC Professional Visnal Media Local Connselors Backgronnd 

Devel0l!ment Local 2 Cool!erative Technology Academ~ Investigation 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Local sources 

Intergovernmental $ 76,191 $ $ $ $ 

Fees for services 446 38,643 204,362 
Total operating revenues 76,191 446 38,643 204,362 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased services 45,334 3,844 28,133 164,355 
Supplies and materials 6,896 592 905 1,495 a, 

V> Depreciation 8,747 2,714 119 3,356 

Capital expenditures 3,354 13,077 

Total operating expenses 60,977 10,504 29,157 182,283 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 15,214 (10,058) 9,486 22,079 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
Interest 307 893 220 413 535 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS 15,521 893 (9,838) 9,899 22,614 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in (out) 51,000 (50,000) 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 66,521 893 (9,838) 9,899 (27,386) 

NET ASSETS, BEG1NN1NG OF YEAR 4,575 11,995 54,154 36,638 54,072 

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 71,096 $ 12,888 $ 44,316 $ 46,537 $ 26,686 
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, ANU CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Kane Connty Human Kane County Library 
Resources Consortium Resources Consortium 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Local sources 

Intergovernmental $ 49,000 $ 65,082 
Fees for services 

Total operating revenues 49,000 65,082 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased services 31,215 18,236 

Supplies and materials 
Depreciation 431 

Capital expenditures 
Total operating expenses 31,646 18,236 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 17,354 46,846 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
Interest 642 95 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS 17,996 46,941 

OTIlER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in (out) (I 8,000) 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (4) 46,941 

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 87,758 3,502 

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 87,754 $ 50,443 

Discovery Education 
United Streaming 

$ 2,750 

2,750 

2,750 

2,750 

2,750 

(3,780) 

$ (1,030) 

SCHEDULE 10 
(CONTINUED) 

Total 

$ 193,023 

243,451 

436,474 

291,11 7 

9,888 

15,367 

16,431 

332,803 

103,671 

3,105 

106,776 

(I 7,000) 

89,776 

248,914 

$ 338,690 



KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 SCHEDULE 11 
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
COMBlNlNG STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Criminal 
ESC Professional Visual Media Local Counselors Background 

Dcvelo~ment Local 2 Coop:crntive Technologx Academ}:: Investigation 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Receipts for workshops and services $ 71,468 $ $ 100,845 $ 37,268 $ 201,542 
Payments to suppliers (88,440) (109,869) (27,443) (146,516) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (16,972) (9,024) 9,825 55,026 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Transfers from (to) other funds 51,000 (50,000) 

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 51,000 (50,000) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchase of capital assets (6,514) (1,190) 
Principal paid on capital lease obligations (7,348) 

Net cash used in capital financing activities (7,348) (6,514) (1,190) 
0\ 
-..J CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY: 

Interest 307 893 220 413 535 
Net cash provided by investing activity 307 893 220 413 535 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26,987 893 (15,318) 10,238 4,371 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (OVERDRAFT), 
BEGINNING OF YEAR 11,370 49,102 44,794 35,285 51,037 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 38,357 $ 49,995 $ 29,476 $ 45,523 $ 55,408 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by 
(used in) operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) $ 15,214 $ $ (10,058) $ 9,486 $ 22,079 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by 

(used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation 8,747 2,714 119 3,356 
Effects of changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable (4,723) (7,073) (2,825) (2,820) 
Due from (to) other funds (36,786) 6,823 
Due from other governmental agencies 107,472 1,450 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 8,576 (108,902) 1,595 32,411 
Due to other governmental agencies (8,000) 
Deferred revenues 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (16,972) $ $ (9,024) $ 9,825 $ 55,026 



KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 SCHEDULE 11 
NONMAJOR PROPruETARY FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Kane County Human Kane County Library Discovery Education 
Resources Consortium Resources Consortium United Streaming Total 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Receipts for workshops and services $ 61,000 $ 43.143 $ 77,750 $ 593,016 
Payments to suppliers (31,215) (50,117) (72,500) (526,100) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 29,785 (6,974) 5,250 66,916 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Transfers from (to) other funds (18,000) (17,000) 

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapitai financing activities (18,000) (17,000) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchase of capital assets (7,704) 
Principal paid on capital lease obligations (7,348) 

Net cash used in capital financing activities (15,052) 
0\ 
00 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY: 

Interest 642 95 3,105 
Net cash provided by investing activity 642 95 3,105 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12,427 (6,879) 5,250 37,969 

CASH AND CASH EQillV ALENTS (OVERDRAFT), 
BEGINNING OF YEAR 53,327 42,012 (30) 286,897 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 65,754 $ 35,133 $ 5,220 $ 324,866 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by 
(used in) operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) $ 17,354 $ 46,846 $ 2,750 $ 103,671 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by 

(used in) operating activities: 

Depreciation 431 15,367 

Effects of changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable (17,441) 

Due ITom (to) other funds (29,963) 

Due ITom other governmental agencies 12,000 42,264 75,000 238,186 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (31,881) (72,500) (170,701) 
Due to other governmental agencies (8,000) 
Deferred revenues (64,203) (64,203) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 29,785 $ (6,974) $ 5,250 $ 66,916 
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